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RESULTS FOR ANNOUNCEMENT TO THE MARKET
APPENDIX 4E – PRELIMINARY FINAL REPORT
Earnings Highlights for the BWX Limited Group
FY15 (1)

FY16

$'m

$'m

45.1
25.6
‐10.8
14.8

54.0
33.4
‐14.4
20.2

19.7%
30.5%
33.3%
36.5%

13.1

18.0

37.4%

9.6

12.0

25.0%

9.6
56.8%

12.0
61.9%

25.0%
510 bpts

Basic EPS (cents per share)
Diluted EPS (cents per share)
Net tangible assets (cents per share)

n/a
n/a
n/a

14.1
12.96
14.5

n/a
n/a
n/a

Net debt

n/a

3.0

n/a

Revenue
Gross profit
Operating expenses
EBITDA (normalised)
Profit (loss) from ordinary activities before
income tax expense
Profit (loss) from ordinary activities after
income tax expense
Total comprehensive income (loss)
attributable to owners of the Company
Gross margin

% growth

1

pro‐forma historical results for the year ended 30 June 2015 as presented in the Company’s prospectus dated 20 October
2015. In order to provide a comprehensive view of the consolidated business and to provide visibility into year over year
comparisons, pro forma adjustments have been taken to reflect the consolidated year of 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015 as
detailed and reported in the Company’s prospectus dated 20 October 2015.

In accordance with the announcement dated 16 August 2016, the Company has declared a fully
franked dividend of 4.8 cents per share, payable on 12 October 2016 with a record date of 6
September 2016. The dividend is payable in reference to the full year ended 30 June 2016.
Refer to the commentary on operating performance and the accompanying ASX announcement dated
16 August 2016 for a brief commentary on the results.
On 31 March 2016, the Group acquired the assets and liabilities of Lightning Brokers Pty Ltd, Vic‐Pharm
Pty Ltd and Niche Brands Australia Pty Ltd. These were purchased by a newly incorporated 100%
owned entity, Lightning Distribution Pty Ltd (Lightning). Refer Note 21 of the Annual Report for details.
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Statutory Earnings Highlights for the BWX Limited Group
FY15 (1)

FY16

$'m

$'m

27.8
1.8

54.0
20.2

94.2%
1,022.2%

(2.3)

18.0

n/a

% growth

Revenue
Operating profit
Profit (loss) from ordinary activities before
income tax expense
Profit (loss) from ordinary activities after
income tax expense
Total comprehensive income (loss)
attributable to owners of the Company
Basic EPS (cents per share)

(2.1)

12.0

n/a

(2.1)
(5.78)

12.0
14.1

n/a
n/a

Diluted EPS (cents per share)
Net tangible assets (cents per share)

(4.93)
(3.8)

13.0
14.5

n/a
n/a

20.0

3.0

(85%)

Net debt

1
The table sets out the statutory historical results of BWX for the 12 months ended 30 June 2015. The revenue and profit
results incorporate sales to the Sukin business, which was the largest customer of BWX up until 19 June 2015, being the date
it was acquired by BWX.
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A MESSAGE FROM OUR CHAIRMAN

Dear Shareholders
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It is my pleasure to present to you BWX Limited’s annual report for the 2016 financial year, the first following our
successful listing and fund-raise in November 2015.
It has been a successful year for BWX Limited. We have continued our growth momentum in sales, profit and
cash flow, all of which have exceeded our forecasts. FY2016 revenue of $54.0m is 19.7% above the pro-forma
revenue of $45.1m in FY2015 and our EBITDA result of $20.2m is 36.5% above the FY2015 pro-forma result of
$14.8m. What is pleasing is that the revenue and profit result has come about as a result of the strong growth in
our branded business, which, as we have stated from the outset, is a key core strategy of our business. The
growth in our branded business has also produced a strong growth in our gross margins.
The major driver of growth has come from the Sukin brand which we acquired on 19 June 2015. By the
commencement of FY2016 we had fully integrated the Sukin brand and its associated personnel into our
business and as a result, we could immediately focus on growing our domestic sales through increased retail
distribution, range extensions as well as the implementation of strategies that were aimed at increasing sales to
existing customers. During the year we introduced the Sukin Oil Balancing sub-range, which together with the
Sukin Super Greens sub-range, which was launched in the last quarter of FY2016, accounted for approximately
11.2% of sales revenue in Sukin. The acquisition of our largest distributor, Lightning Brokers, in March 2016 has
resulted in BWX Limited now controlling circa 75% of its own distribution. In addition to the financial benefits, this
acquisition is strategically important in that it gives us greater ability to directly influence the representation of our
brand in store, particularly in pharmacies where the majority of Sukin is sold. In financial year 2016 our pro-forma
growth of domestic Sukin sales are in excess of 40%.
Considerable work was also undertaken to strengthen and enhance the consumer appeal of the other two brands
in our portfolio. Edward Beale and Uspa each received a range review and a graphics upgrade during the year
and this will position them for significant growth in FY2017. Uspa’s upgrade will only be completed in the first
quarter of FY2017.
There is a large export opportunity available to our brands and a great deal of activity over the year has been
dedicated to setting up the structures and relationships that will provide entry to these targeted markets. A
significant opportunity for our brands lies in Asia, especially in China and to that end, after extensive due
diligence, we have in place several agreements with export partners to supply a number of key Chinese ecommerce platforms. We are also establishing flagship stores with two of the leading online retailers which
service this growing market. We expect that sales into China in FY2017 will be a key driver of our export revenue.
With much momentum still to come, we nevertheless posted significant gains in our export sales in FY2016. We
have made good gains in building our distribution into the United Kingdom. In the year we secured a listing in
Holland and Barrett, a leading UK health retailer, for a core range of Sukin’s skin and body care products, and
following their success we have been able to list the new Super Greens and Oil Balancing sub-ranges. Initially in
142 of their stores, the broadened Sukin range has recently been extended to approximately 700 stores. In May
we presented the Sukin range to Boots in the UK and we have been advised that a selected range of 27 Sukin
products, in various combinations, will be listed in 220 of the top Boots stores. In addition, these products will also
be made available to approximately 2,500 of their stores online. The full financial impact of these export gains will
be realised in FY2017. New Zealand, China and the UK are key export markets for Sukin and we have continued
to see solid growth in both distribution and sales from these regions. We are looking to further develop the
Canadian export opportunity in the coming year.
With strong growth anticipated from both domestic and international markets for our brands we have continued to
upgrade our manufacturing facility. Over the year we have invested $800k in additional plant and equipment.
Much of this expenditure has been aimed at significantly improving our batch run size and line speed. A
specifically targeted goal, which we achieved, was to increase the Sukin manufacturing capability by 50%. Across
the year we have also maintained a constant focus on improving the quality of our management and supervisory
staff as well as recruiting high level skills into business-critical areas such as procurement, warehousing,
inventory management and sales management. We will continue to upgrade the level of skill in our business as
the need and opportunities present.
Of course we would never have achieved all that we have if it were not for the commitment and dedication of our
loyal, talented and hardworking staff. I extend to you all my thanks and appreciation for your discipline,
commitment and valued contribution; we could not have done it without you. I also extend my gratitude and
appreciation to our Board of Directors who have worked tirelessly to produce the results that we have and to
position our Company for substantial growth.
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A MESSAGE FROM OUR CHAIRMAN
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I would like to close by thanking our shareholders who, by purchasing BWX shares, have enabled us to continue
to unlock the many available opportunities that present. You can be sure that as Directors and employees of
BWX Limited we will do all in our power to realise the substantial growth opportunities that are before us and we
appreciate and value the confidence you have in us to deliver these goals.

Mr Denis Shelley
Chairman
Dated 16 August 2016
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors present their report together with the consolidated financial statements of BWX Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the financial year ended 30 June 2016 and the
auditor’s report thereon.
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Directors
The Directors of the Company at any time during or since the end of the financial year are:
Name,
qualifications and
independence
status

Experience, special responsibilities and other directorships

Mr Denis Shelley,
BEd, BPsych
Chairperson
Independent
NonExecutive Director

Mr Denis Shelley is an experienced marketer, senior executive and CEO with more than
30 years’ experience across a number of leading multinational companies including
Sterling Winthrop, Reckitt & Colman and a 14-year international CEO career with Sara
Lee Corporation (1992-2006).
Mr Shelley has a broad industry background in FMCG, direct selling, intimate apparel
and manufacturing operations. Mr Shelley has experience in managing and building a
broad range of consumer brands spanning pharmaceuticals, health and beauty,
personal-care, intimate apparel and household products. Positions held include various
brand management and marketing director roles such as Group Marketing Director
Reckitt & Colman South Africa, CEO Sara Lee South Africa, CEO Sara Lee Household &
Body Care Australia and President of Nutrimetics Australia.
Additionally, Mr Shelley also held the position of Group Chairman of Sara Lee Australia
(1996-2006) and as a result brings considerable experience in the many areas of
corporate governance to BWX. He holds a Bachelor of Psychology and a Bachelor of
Education and is a qualified teacher.

Mr John Humble,
Chief
Executive
Officer

Mr John Humble established Leisure and Hospitality Services Pty Ltd in 1993 to fill a
niche in the manufacture of small-run personal-care products.
Through Mr Humble’s direction the business developed its own formulations (IP) and
created a suite of “natural” products that now are exported around the world. Mr Humble
led the executive team in establishing the business of BWX Ltd and was central in
delivering the successful acquisition of the Sukin businesses.

Mr Ian Campbell,
FAICD
Independent
NonExecutive Director

Mr Ian Campbell is a highly experienced company executive whose career started as a
computer programmer and quickly moved into middle then senior management in a
variety of operational roles in manufacturing and sales and marketing.
Mr Campbell joined Olex Cables as Group General Manager and then as Managing
Director of the Pacific Dunlop Cables Group until 1998.
In 1998 Mr Campbell joined ASX-200 listed GUD Holdings Ltd as its Managing Director
and CEO until his retirement in mid-2013. GUD managed a stable of consumer, trade
and industrial businesses. It was a diverse portfolio of branded manufactured or sourced
products selling to the retail, trade wholesale and B-to-B sectors. Companies in the
GUD stable during his tenure were Sunbeam appliances, Oates cleaning, Victa
Lawncare (divested in 2007), Davey Water Products, Lockfocus, Ryco and Wesfil
automotive and Dexion storage solutions.
Mr Campbell has been a non-executive Director of Mirrabooka Investments Ltd since
2007. He was formerly a national councilor and Victorian Vice-president of the
Australian Industry Group.
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Name,
qualifications and
independence
status

Experience, special responsibilities and other directorships

Mr Aaron Finlay,
B.Com, CA, SA. Fin,
AGIA, MAICD
Executive Director,
Company Secretary

Mr Aaron Finlay is a Chartered Accountant and Chartered Company Secretary with over
25 years’ experience in the accounting and finance profession, with experience in a
range of industries, as well as in cross-border merger and acquisitions and corporate
finance.
Mr Finlay has held a number of executive and director roles for ASX and NASDAQ listed
companies, including most recently Cleveland Mining Company Limited, a gold-focused
mining company based in Brazil, Mayne Pharma Group Limited (ASX:MYX), a specialty
pharmaceutical company with which he was instrumental in the acquisition of Mayne
Pharmaceuticals International Pty Ltd in 2009, pSivida Corp, an ASX, Frankfurt and
NASDAQ listed bio-nanotechnology company (NASDAQ:PSDV), and ETW Corporation
Limited, now Alexium International Limited, a specialty chemicals technology company
based in the US (ASX:AJX).
Previously Mr Finlay was INVESCO Australia’s Chief Financial Officer after holding the
position as Head of Group Tax & Treasury for INVESCO’s global operations in London.
Prior to joining INVESCO, Mr Finlay worked for PricewaterhouseCoopers (then Price
Waterhouse) in London and Perth, Australia for seven years.

Mr Craig Bottomley
Independent
NonExecutive Director

Mr Craig Bottomley has more than 20 years’ experience in establishing and developing
commercial ventures. He has been involved in the manufacturing, importing, exporting
and marketing of products for his own companies. Mr Bottomley has established
national and international sales distribution channels for both locally developed and
imported products.
Mr Bottomley was one of the founders of ASX-listed company Mayne Pharma Group
Limited, serving as its Chief Operating Officer and Executive Director from 28 November
2005 to 28 July 2010. During this time Mr Bottomley was one of the team leaders who
assisted in the acquisition of Mayne Pharmaceuticals International Pty Ltd in 2009.
Mayne Pharma Group Ltd currently ranks in the S&P/ASX 200 index.

Board and Committee Meeting attendance
The number of directors’ meetings (including meetings of committees of directors) and number of meetings
attended by each of the directors of the Company during the financial year are:
Board of Directors
Meetings
Directors

Number
Held During
the Term

Mr D Shelley
Mr J Humble
Mr I Campbell
Mr A Finlay
Mr C Bottomley

Number
Attended

12
12
12
12
12

12
12
12
12
12

Risk and Audit Committee
Meetings

Remuneration Committee
Meetings

Number
Held During
the Term

Number
Held During
the Term

2
2
2

Number
Attended
2
2
2

2
2
2

Number
Attended
2
2
2

Principal activities
BWX Limited is a vertically integrated developer, manufacturer distributor and marketer of branded skin and hair
care products with an emphasis on the natural segment of the beauty and personal care market. The company
owns, produces and distributes under the Sukin, Derma Sukin, USpa, Edward Beale and Renew Skincare
brands.
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Operating and financial review
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The profit of the Consolidated Entity before depreciation and amortisation, finance costs, acquisition and
restructuring expenses and income tax expense for the year amounted to $20,193,361 (loss for year ended 30
June 2015: $1,789,520).
The profit of the Consolidated Entity for the year after providing for income tax amounted to $12,024,343 (loss for
year ended 30 June 2015: $2,137,717).
The Consolidated Entity’s basic earnings per share is 14.08 cents. It’s diluted earnings per share is 12.99 cents.
The net assets of the Consolidated Entity are $90,764,441 as at 30 June 2016 (2015: $56,369,157).
BWX Limited undertook a 5 for 1 share consolidation on 17 September 2015, reducing the number of ordinary
shares on issue by 300,714,474.
BWX Limited was listed on the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX) on 11 November 2015. The Initial Public
Offering (IPO) successfully placed 13,333,333 shares on the ASX and raised $20 million (before costs) which
was used to settle bank loans incurred to finance the acquisition of the Sukin business in June 2015.
On 31 March 2016 BWX Limited acquired the Lightning Brokers business. Lightning Brokers is a national
distributor of personal care products and distributes the Sukin product range throughout NSW, ACT, Victoria and
Tasmania. At the date of acquisition, Lightning Brokers was responsible for approximately 50 percent of the
Sukin distribution to the Australian market. Total consideration for the acquisition of the business was $12.5
million including $5.818 million for working capital and a $1 million deferred performance based payment to be
settled in ordinary shares. Details of the acquisition are included at Note 21.
BWX Limited entered into an agreement during the financial year with Holland and Barrett, one of the UK’s
leading health retailers, to stock Sukin’s Supergreens and Oil Balancing ranges. The products were rolled out to
approximately 700 Holland and Barrett retail outlets during April 2016. Prior to the agreement, Holland and
Barrett retailed a selection of Sukin’s core range of products in 142 of their leading stores.
BWX Limited continued to develop its business in China during the 2016 financial year. The Company entered
into several agreements with its export partners to supply a number of key Chinese based e-commerce
platforms. Flagship stores were established on both JD.com and Tmall, two of the world’s largest online retailers,
in the final quarter of the year.
Significant changes in the state of affairs
In the opinion of the directors there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Group that occurred
during the financial year other than those noted above.

Dividends paid or recommended
No dividends have been paid during the 2016 and 2015 financial years.
Declared after end of year
After the balance sheet date, the following fully franked dividends were proposed by the Directors. The dividends
have not been provided for and there are no income tax consequences.

Final ordinary

Cents per share

Total amount
$’000

Date of payment

4.80

4,396

12 Oct 2016

Events subsequent to the reporting date
The Company entered into an agreement with Boots in July 2016 to initially range 27 of Sukin’s best-selling
SKU’s in approximately 80 of Boots’ highest turnover stores. In addition, 14 of these SKU’s will be on shelf in a
further 140 selected high street locations. Sukin products will also be available on order from any of Boots 2,500
retail outlets as well as through their online stores. The products selected by Boots are comprised of several core
range products, along with the popular Super Greens and recently released Oil Balancing ranges.
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The Group implemented a cash based short term incentive (STI) scheme to all Directors, senior management,
and selected staff effective from 1 July 2016. Details of the STI can be found in the Remuneration Report on
pages 12 to 19.
Other than the matters discussed above, there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year
and the date of this report any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of
the Directors of the Company, to affect significantly the operations of the Group, the results of those operations,
or the state of affairs of the Group in future financial years.

Future developments, prospects and business strategies
Further information about likely developments in the operations of the Group and the expected results of those
operations in future financial years has not been included in this report because disclosure of the information
would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Group.

Environmental regulation and performance
The Group’s operations are subject to various environmental laws and regulations and where required the Group
maintains environmental licenses and registrations in compliance with applicable regulatory requirements. These
environmental laws and regulations control the use of land, the erection of buildings and structures on land, the
emission of substances to water, land and atmosphere, the emission of noise and odours, the treatment and
disposal of waste, and the investigation and remediation of soil and ground water contamination. The Group has
procedures in place designed to ensure compliance with all applicable environmental regulatory requirements.
The board is not aware of any significant breaches during the year covered by this report.

Directors’ interests
The relevant interest of each director in the shares, debentures, interests in registered schemes and rights or
options over such instruments issued by the companies within the Group and other related bodies corporate, as
notified by the directors to the ASX in accordance with s205G(1) of the Corporations Act 2001 at the date of this
report is as follows:

Mr D Shelley
Mr J Humble
Mr I Campbell
Mr A Finlay
Mr C Bottomley

Ordinary Shares

Loan Plan Shares

Options Over
Ordinary Shares

333,334
9,742,945
272,728
1,383,696
1,103,695
12,836,398

150,000
300,000
150,000
300,000
150,000
1,050,000

200,000
2,800,000
100,000
420,000
420,000
3,940,000

A share reconstruction occurred on 17 September 2015 which consolidated 5 ordinary shares into 1 ordinary
share.
Ordinary shares and options over ordinary shares held by Directors are subject to a voluntary escrow period of
twelve months commencing 11 November 2015 (the first date BWX Limited shares were quoted on the ASX).
The 3,940,000 options held by Directors form part of the total 5,620,000 options on issue at 30 June 2016. Refer
to Share Options section below.
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9

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Share options
Unissued shares under option
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At the date of this report, the unissued ordinary shares of the Group under option are:
Grant date
1 May 2013
22 July 2013
2 January 2014
5 March 2014
15 July 2015

Expiry date

Exercise price

Number under option

30 September 2018
30 September 2018
30 September 2018
30 September 2018
30 September 2018

$2.00
$2.00
$2.00
$2.00
$2.00

3,640,000
200,000
320,000
1,680,000
100,000
5,940,000

No options were exercised during the financial year. On 17 September 2015 the Company undertook a 5:1
consolidation of its ordinary shares and options.
All unissued shares are ordinary shares of the Company.
All options expire on the earlier of their expiry date or termination of the employee’s employment. Further details
about share based payments to Directors and Key Management Personnel are included in the Remuneration
Report.
No person entitled to exercise an option had or has any right by virtue of the option to participate in any share
issue of any other body corporate.
Shares issued on exercise of options
During or since the end of the financial year, the Group did not issue ordinary shares of the Company as a result
of the exercise of options.

Indemnification and insurance of officers and auditors
Indemnification
In accordance with the constitution, except as may be prohibited by the Corporations Act 2001 every officer of the
Company shall be indemnified out of the property of the Company against any liability incurred by him in his
capacity as officer or agent of the Company or any related corporation in respect of any act or omission
whatsoever and howsoever occurring or in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal.
The Group has not entered into any agreements to indemnity their auditors, William Buck for any liabilities to
another person (other than the Company or a related body corporate) that may arise from their position as
auditor.
Insurance premiums
During the year, the Company paid a premium in respect of a contract insuring its directors and officers against a
liability of this nature. In accordance with normal commercial practices under the terms of the insurance
contracts, the nature of the liabilities insured against and the amounts of premiums paid are confidential.

Non-audit services
The Company’s Risk and Audit Committee (RAC) is responsible for the maintenance of audit independence.
Specifically, the RAC Charter ensures the independence of the auditor is maintained by:



Limiting the scope and nature of non-audit services that may be provided; and
Requiring that permitted non audit services must be pre-approved by the Chairman of the RAC.

During the year William Buck, the Group’s auditor, has performed certain other services in addition to the audit
and review of the financial statements. The Board has considered the non-audit services provided during the year
by the auditor and in accordance with written advice provided by the RAC, is satisfied that the provision of those
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non-audit services during the year by the auditor is compatible with, and did not compromise, the auditor
independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 for the following reasons:
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All non-audit services were subject to the corporate governance procedures adopted by the Group and
have been reviewed by the RAC to ensure they do not impact the integrity and objectivity of the auditor;
and
The non-audit services provided do not undermine the general principles relating to auditor
independence as set out in APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as they did not
involve reviewing or auditing the auditors own work, acting in a management or decision making
capacity for the Group, acting as an advocate for the Group or jointly sharing risks and rewards.

Details of the amounts paid to the auditor of the Group, William Buck, for audit and non-audit services provided
during the year are set out in Note 23.

Auditor’s independence declaration
The auditor’s independence declaration for the year ended 30 June 2016 has been received and is attached to
this Directors’ Report.

CEO and Finance Director Declaration
The CEO and Finance Director have given a declaration to the Board concerning the Group’s financial
statements under section 295A(2) of the Corporations Act 2001 and recommendations 4.1 and 7.2 of the ASX
Corporate Governance Council Principles of Good Corporate Governance and Best Practice Recommendations
in regards to the integrity of the financial statements.

Directors’ and Executive Officers’ Remuneration Policy
Details of the Group’s Remuneration Policy in respect of the Directors and KMP are included in the
Remuneration Report on pages 12 to 19. Details of the remuneration paid to each Non-Executive Directors, the
CEO and the Finance Director are detailed in the Remuneration Report. The Remuneration Report is
incorporated in and forms part of this Director’s Report.

Rounding
The amounts contained in this report and in the financial report have been rounded to the nearest $1,000 (where
rounding is applicable) under the option available to the company under ASIC Corporations (Rounding in
Financial / Directors’ Reports) Instrument 2016/191.
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The Directors of BWX Limited are pleased to present the Remuneration Report (“the Report”) for the Company
and its subsidiaries (“the Company” or “the Group”) for the financial year ended 30 June 2016. This Report has
been prepared and audited in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001.
For the purposes of this Report, Key Management Personnel (“KMP”) are defined as persons having authority
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the major activities of the Group, and include all NonExecutive Directors of the Company and Executives who are listed in the table below.
Non-Executive Directors
Mr Denis Shelley
Mr Ian Campbell
Mr Craig Bottomley

Non-Executive Chairman
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

Executives
Mr John Humble
Mr Aaron Finlay

Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)
Executive Director

The above Non-Executive Directors and Executives were the KMP for the whole of the financial year, unless
otherwise indicated.

Remuneration Governance
The Board is responsible for determining Non-Executive Director and Executive remuneration. The role of the
Remuneration Committee (the Committee) is to assist the Board to ensure that appropriate and effective
remuneration packages and policies are implemented within the Company and the Group in relation to the CEO,
executive directors and those reporting directly to the CEO. The Remuneration Committee also reviews fees paid
to Non-Executive Directors.
The Committee is governed by its Charter, which is published on the Company’s website at www.bwxltd.com. The
Committee is comprised of a minimum of 3 Non-Executive Directors. For the full financial year, the Committee
members were:
Denis Shelley
Craig Bottomley
Ian Campbell

Chairman
Member
Member

The duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to:








Review and recommend to the Board remuneration policies and packages for the CEO, executive
directors and direct reports to the CEO;
Recommend to the Board any changes in remuneration policy including superannuation, other benefits
and remuneration structure for executives and which are likely to have a material impact on the Group;
Review and recommend to the Board proposals for employee and Non-Executive Director equity plans;
Review and recommend to the Board proposals for short and long term incentive programs for
executives;
Review and recommend to the Board any changes to Non-Executive Directors’ fees;
Ensure there is a proper performance management process in place throughout the organisation and
that it is operating effectively; and
Be informed of:
o Current trends in executive remuneration and associated incentive initiatives; and
o Legislative issues with executive remuneration programs.

In accordance with section 206K of the Corporations Act 2001, the Committee has a process for engaging
remuneration consultants. The Committee, on behalf of the Board, commissions and receives information, advice
and recommendations directly from remuneration consultants, ensuring remuneration recommendations are free
of undue influence by management.
No consultants were engaged with respect to providing remuneration recommendations for the Non-Executive
Directors and Executives during the financial year. In order to ensure the Company’s remuneration practices are
consistent with the external market, benchmarking data was obtained for Non-Executive Director and Executive
positions.
The Company’s remuneration strategy is designed to attract, retain, motivate and reward employees by providing
fair and reasonable rewards for achieving high performance and creating sustained value for shareholders.
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12

REMUNERATION REPORT

Director remuneration is connected to Company performance to encourage high performance for the benefit of
shareholders. It is currently too early to estimate the consequences of performance on shareholder wealth.

Fixed Remuneration
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Non-Executive Director Remuneration
In determining the level and make-up of Non-Executive remuneration, the Board negotiates remuneration to
reflect the market salary for a position and individual of comparable responsibility and experience whilst
considering the Company’s stage of development. Remuneration is compared with the external market by
reference to industry salary surveys.
Remuneration consists of base fees, superannuation and long term incentives. Fixed remuneration is reviewed
annually. Non-Executive Director base fees increased by up to 50% during the year ended 30 June 2016 to
continue to bring the remuneration of the Board more into line with that of a medium cap Australian ASX listed
company. Total fees and superannuation actually paid to the Non-Executive Directors for the financial year were
$214,351 as set out on page 15.
Non-Executive Directors participate in the Company’s Employee Loan Plan, a Long Term Incentive (“LTI”)
established in the 2016 financial year designed to attract and retain committed and skilled Board members to
oversee the expected growth and development of the business.
The table below shows the structure and level of Non-Executive Director Fees for the current and preceding
financial years as approved by the Board.
Role
Chairman
Non-Executive Director

2015/16
$

Annual Fee Structure
2014/15
$

60,000
50,000

40,000
40,000

Executive Remuneration
Executive remuneration consists of base fees, superannuation, short term and long term incentives as
considered appropriate. Fixed remuneration reflects the complexity of the individual’s role and their experience,
knowledge and performance. Internal and external benchmarking is regularly undertaken and fixed remuneration
levels are set with regard to the external market median, with scope for incremental increase for superior
performance.
Fixed remuneration is reviewed annually, taking into account the performance of the individual and the Company.
There are no guaranteed increases to fixed remuneration in any contracts of employment.
Executive base fees increased by up to 54% during the year ended 30 June 2016 as part of the strategy to
continue to bring the remuneration of the Board more into line with that of a medium cap Australian ASX listed
company. Total fees and superannuation actually paid to the Executive Directors for the financial year were
$616,428 as set out on page 15.
The table below shows the structure and level of Executive Fees for the current and preceding financial years as
approved by the Board.
Role

2015/16
$

Annual Fee Structure
2014/15
$

Chief Executive Officer
Executive Director

350,000
285,000

250,000
185,000

Short term incentive
The Group has implemented a Short Term Incentive (STI) component to remuneration of Executives, senior
management and selected employees effective from 1 July 2016. Non-Executive Directors are not entitled to
participate in the STI. The STI component of an Executive’s total reward is an annual cash incentive plan. The
STI links a portion of Executive remuneration to specific financial measures.
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Under the STI, the maximum reward value is 80% of fixed remuneration for the CEO and Finance Director. A
statutory reported basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) criteria must be achieved to trigger any STI payment
opportunity. The criteria are determined by the Board on an annual basis.
For all KMP, two measures are used to determine performance under the plan and are weighted equally 50/50.
50% is based on the performance of the BWX Ltd statutory reported Basic Earnings Per Share (“EPS”). The
remaining 50% is based on achievement of a minimum of 4 annual personal KPIs set at the beginning of each
financial year.

Employee Loan Plan Shares
The Employee Loan Plan (“ELP”) component of a Director’s total reward is a performance rights plan that is
designed to encourage Directors to focus on key performance drivers that underpin sustainable growth in
shareholder value. The ELP facilitates share ownership by Directors and links a proportion of their remuneration
to financial measures over the performance period.
Under the ELP, Directors and senior management are provided with a recourse loan with no interest bearing
terms from the Company for the sole purpose of acquiring shares in the Company. The shares have all the rights
and entitlements attached to ordinary shares, with the following exceptions:







From their grant date the shares cannot be disposed or assigned until they have vested in accordance
with performance milestones as disclosed in public announcements;
In respect of vested shares, repayment of the loan must be made within five years from when the shares
were issued. The borrower must repay the lesser of the outstanding value of the loan or the market
value of the shares acquired within the loan facility. If the borrower leaves employment with the Group,
they must repay within 12 months from their termination date the lesser of the outstanding balance on
the loan amount or the market value of the shares acquired with the loan facility;
In respect of unvested shares, repayment of the loan must be made within five years from when the
shares are issued. The borrower must repay the market value of the shares unless the loan had
previously been repaid in full. If the borrower leaves employment with the Group and holds unvested
shares the borrower must repay the market value of the shares unless the loan has been previously
repaid in full; and
With regards to the enforcement of loan repayments the Board holds discretion to modify the repayment
terms.

To gain access to the shares, the Director must repay the outstanding loan following successful testing of the
vesting conditions. The vesting conditions are as follows:






25% of shares will vest on completion of 12 months’ service from the date of issue of the shares under
the ELP (“Tranche 1”);
20% of shares will vest on completion of 24 months’ service from the date of issue of the shares under
the ELP (“Tranche 2”);
10% of shares will vest on completion of 36 months’ service from the date of issue of the shares under
the ELP (“Tranche 3”);
30% of shares will vest on the first occurrence of a 20% of more increase in EBITDA for a financial year
from the EBITDA for the year ended 30 June 2015 as set out in the pro forma financials included in the
Prospectus (“Tranche 4”); and
15% of the shares will vest on the first occurrence of a 30% of more increase in EBITDA for a financial
year from the EBITDA for the year ended 30 June 2015 as set out I the pro forma financials included in
the Prospectus (“Tranche 5”).

No performance rights under the ELP have vested during the financial year ended 30 June 2016. Note 24 sets
out details of all ELP performance rights movements during the year.

Options
All options on issue by the Company are subject to the following vesting conditions:
1.

2.

One third of the total number of options held by the option holder vest on the first occurrence of a 25%
or more increase in EBITDA for a financial year from EBITDA for the year ended 30 June 2013 as
recognised in the pro forma financials included in the BWX Limited Information Memorandum dated 14
October 2013;
One third of the total number of options held by the option holder vest on the first occurrence of a 50%
or more increase in EBITDA for a financial year from EBITDA for the year ended 30 June 2013 as
recognised in the pro forma financials included in the BWX Limited Information Memorandum dated 14
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3.

October 2013 (if this vesting condition is satisfied, then the vesting condition in item 1 is also deemed to
be satisfied; and
One third of the total number of options held by the option holder vest on the holder being an employee
or Director during the period commencing on the date that the Company completes an acquisition and
ending on 30 June 2016, except where the employment of the holder is terminated by the Group for any
reason other than serious misconduct on the part of the holder.

The Board have not resolved to vest the options following the release of the results for the financial year ended
30 June 2016.

Employment contracts of directors and senior executives
The Company has entered into standard employment agreements (fixed remuneration and equity-based
incentives) with all executive directors and senior management. These agreements generally provide for an
indefinite period of appointment, and may be terminated by either party at 3 months’ notice. No termination
payments are payable on termination of employment.
None of the non-executive directors have employment contracts with the Company.

Details of remuneration for year ended 30 June 2016
Details of the remuneration of the Directors of BWX Limited and its controlled entities, are set out in the following
tables.

2016

Short-term benefits

Post
employment

Salary and Cash bonus Non-cash
fees
benefits (1)

Superannuation

$

$

$

$

Sharebased
payments

Total

$

$

Performance
Related
%

Non-Executive
Directors
Mr D Shelley

52,975

-

-

5,016

12,817

70,808

18.10%

Mr I Campbell

46,397

-

-

4,408

32,596

83,401

39.08%

Mr C Bottomley (3)

96,397

-

-

9,158

12,817

118,372

10.83%

195,769

-

-

18,582

58,230

272,581

Mr J Humble

313,974

-

16,364

29,827

25,635

385,800

6.64%

Mr A Finlay

248,974

-

11,365

23,653

25,635

309,627

8.28%

562,948

-

27,729

53,480

51,270

695,427

758,717

-

27,729

72,062

109,500

968,008

Executives
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2015

Short-term benefits

Post
employment

Salary and Cash bonus Non-cash
fees
benefits (1)

Superannuation

$

$

$

$

Sharebased
payments

Total

$

$

Performance
Related
%

Non-Executive
Directors
Mr D Shelley

40,000

-

-

3,800

-

43,800

-

Mr I Campbell

5,000

-

-

475

-

5,475

-

90,000

-

-

8,550

-

98,550

-

135,000

-

-

12,825

-

147,825

Mr J Humble

250,000

-

19,103

23,750

-

292,853

-

Mr A Finlay

185,000

-

13,425

17,575

-

216,000

-

Mr G Pearce (2)

248,274

-

(10,212)

17,660

206,232

461,954

44.6%

683,274

-

22,316

58,985

206,232

970,807

818,274

-

22,316

71,810

206,232

1,118,632

Mr C Bottomley (3)

Executives

(1)
(2)
(3)

Non-cash benefits comprise accruals for employee leave provisions accrued during the period.
Resigned 13 May 2015
Includes base salary for Non-Executive Director plus annual fee of $50,000 for managing investor
relations of the Group

Rights and options over equity instruments granted as compensation
During the year the Company granted 500,000 (100,000 post 5:1 share consolidation) options to Mr Ian
Campbell. Refer to Movement in Options below. This is in addition to the ELP shares as noted below.
Exercise of options granted as compensation
During the reporting period no shares were issued on the exercise of options previously granted as
compensation.
Details of ELP shares issued during the period
Details of vesting profiles of the LTI loan funded options held by each key management person of the Group are
detailed below:
Tranche

Grant
date

Number
granted

Share
price at
grant
date
$

Fair value
at grant
date
$

Total fair
value at
grand
date
$

Expected
vesting
date at
issue

Mr D Shelley

1
2
3
4
5

19/10/15
19/10/15
19/10/15
19/10/15
19/10/15

37,500
30,000
15,000
45,000
22,500
150,000

1.50
1.50
1.50
1.50
1.50

0.33
0.30
0.30
0.30
0.30

12,370
9,027
4,513
13,447
6,700
46,057

19/10/16
19/10/17
19/10/18
31/08/17
31/08/18

Mr I Campbell

1
2
3
4
5

19/10/15
19/10/15
19/10/15
19/10/15
19/10/15

37,500
30,000
15,000
45,000
22,500
150,000

1.50
1.50
1.50
1.50
1.50

$0.33
$0.30
$0.30
$0.30
$0.30

12,370
9,027
4,513
13,447
6,700
46,057

19/10/16
19/10/17
19/10/18
31/08/17
31/08/18
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Tranche

Grant
date

Mr C Bottomley

1
2
3
4
5

19/10/15
19/10/15
19/10/15
19/10/15
19/10/15

37,500
30,000
15,000
45,000
22,500
150,000

Mr J Humble

1
2
3
4
5

19/10/15
19/10/15
19/10/15
19/10/15
19/10/15

Mr A Finlay

1
2
3
4
5

19/10/15
19/10/15
19/10/15
19/10/15
19/10/15

Total

Number
granted

Share
price at
grant
date
$
1.50
1.50
1.50
1.50
1.50

Fair value
at grant
date

Total fair
value at
grand
date
$
12,370
9,027
4,513
13,447
6,700
46,057

Expected
vesting
date at
issue

75,000
60,000
30,000
90,000
45,000
300,000

1.50
1.50
1.50
1.50
1.50

$0.33
$0.30
$0.30
$0.30
$0.30

24,740
18,054
9,026
26,895
13,400
92,115

19/10/16
19/10/17
19/10/18
31/08/17
31/08/18

75,000
60,000
30,000
90,000
45,000
300,000
1,050,000

1.50
1.50
1.50
1.50
1.50

$0.33
$0.30
$0.30
$0.30
$0.30

24,740
18,054
9,026
26,895
13,400
92,115
322,401

19/10/16
19/10/17
19/10/18
31/08/17
31/08/18

$
$0.33
$0.30
$0.30
$0.30
$0.30

19/10/16
19/10/17
19/10/18
31/08/17
31/08/18

Movements in ELP shares
The movement during the reporting period in the number of ELP shares in BWX Limited held, directly, indirectly,
or beneficially, by each key management person, including their related parties, are as follows:
Vested and
Exercisable
at 30 June
2016

Vested &
Unexercisable
at 30 June
2016

150,000

-

-

-

150,000

-

-

150,000

-

150,000

-

-

-

300,000

-

300,000

-

-

Mr A Finlay

-

300,000

-

300,000

-

-

Total

-

1,050,000

-

1,050,000

-

-

Balance at
1 July 2015

Granted as
compensati
on during
year

Forfeited
during year

Mr D Shelley

-

150,000

-

Mr I Campbell

-

150,000

Mr C Bottomley

-

Mr J Humble

Balance at
30 June
2016

Movements in options
The movements during the reporting period in the number of options over ordinary shares in BWX Limited held,
directly, indirectly or beneficially, by each key management person, including their related parties are as follows:
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Balance at
1 July 2015

Granted as
compensati
on

Share
reconstruct
ion (i)

1,000,000

-

(800,000)

-

500,000

2,100,000

Mr D Shelley

Vested and
exercisable
at 30 June
2016

Vested and
unexercisable
at 30 June
2016

200,000

-

-

(400,000)

100,000

-

-

-

(1,680,000)

420,000

-

-

14,000,000

-

(11,200,000)

2,800,000

-

-

2,100,000

-

(1,680,000)

420,000

-

-

19,200,000

500,000

(15,760,000)

3,940,000

-

-

Mr I Campbell (ii)
Mr C Bottomley
Mr J Humble
Mr A Finlay
Total
(i)
(ii)

Balance at
30 June
2016

A share reconstruction occurred on 17 September 2015 which consolidated 5 ordinary shares and
options into 1 ordinary share.
500,000 options were granted to Mr Ian Campbell on 15 July 2015 with at a fair value of $0.039 per
option (total $19,779). The exercise price is $2.00 (post share consolidation) and the expiry date is 30
September 2018. The options are subject to the same terms and conditions as disclosed in Options
section above.

Movements in shares
The movement during the reporting period in the number of ordinary shares in BWX limited held, directly,
indirectly or beneficially, by each key management person, including their related parties, is as follows:
Held at 1 July
Issued on
Share
Share
Held at 30
2015
exercise of
reconstruction
Disposals
June 2016
options during
(i)
the year
Mr D Shelley

1,666,667

-

(1,333,333)

-

333,334

Mr I Campbell

1,363,637

-

(1,090,909)

-

272,728

Mr C Bottomley

7,218,472

-

(5,774,778)

(340,000)

1,103,695

75,184,723

-

(60,147,778)

(5,294,000)

9,742,945

6,918,472

-

(5,534,776)

-

1,383,696

92,351,971

-

(73,881,574)

(5,634,000)

12,836,398

Mr J Humble
Mr A Finlay
Total
(1)

Shares were consolidated under a 5:1 reconstruction in the 2016 financial year

Ordinary shares held by Directors are subject to a voluntary escrow period of twelve months commencing 11
November 2015 (the first date BWX Limited shares were quoted on the ASX).
Loans to key management personnel and their related parties
There were no loans to the Executives during the financial year other than those detailed above in accordance
with the Company’s Employee Loan Plan.
Other transactions with key management personnel
There were no transactions with key management personnel, or their related parties during the financial year.
End of Remuneration Report.
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The Directors’ Report is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors, and signed for and on
behalf of the directors by:

Mr John Humble
Chief Executive Officer
Dated at Melbourne this 16th day of August 2016
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The Board members of BWX Limited are committed to achieving and demonstrating the highest standards of
corporate governance. The ASX Corporate Governance Council has developed and released corporate
governance recommendation for Australian listed entities in order to promote investor confidence and to assist
companies to meet stakeholder expectations. The recommendations are not prescriptions but guidelines. The
Board continues to review the framework and practices to ensure they meet the interests of shareholders. The
Company and its controlled entities together are referred to as the Consolidated Entity in this statement.
The relationship between the Board and Senior Management is critical to the Consolidated Entity’s long term
success. The Directors are responsible o the shareholders for the performance of the Company in both the short
and the longer term and seek to balance sometimes competing objectives in the best interests of the
Consolidated Entity as a whole. Their focus is to enhance the interests of shareholders and other key
stakeholders and to ensure the Consolidated Entity is properly managed.
Day to day management of the Consolidated Entity’s affairs and implementation of the corporate strategy and
policy initiatives are formally delegated by the Board to the Chief Executive Officer.
A description of the Company’s main corporate governance practices is set out below. All of these practices,
unless otherwise stated, were in place for the entire year.
Foundations for management and oversight
The Board is responsible for the overall corporate governance of BWX. The Board monitors the operational and
financial position and performance of BWX and oversees its business strategy, including approving the strategic
goals of BWX and considering and approving a business plan and an annual budget.
The Board is committed to maximizing performance, generating appropriate levels of shareholder value, and
sustaining the growth and success of BWX.
In conducting BWX’s business with these objectives, the Board seeks to ensure that BWX is properly managed to
protect and enhance shareholder interests, and that BWX and its Directors, officers and personnel operate in an
appropriate environment of corporate governance. Accordingly, the Board has created a framework for managing
BWX, including adopting relevant internal controls, risk management processes and corporate governance
policies and practices which it believes are appropriate for BWX’s business and which are designed to promote
the responsible management and conduct of BWX.
Board composition
The Board reviews from time to time the size, structure and composition of the Board, taking into consideration
the balance of skills, experience and knowledge of Board members.
The Board considers an Independent Director to be a Non-Executive Director who is not a member of the
Company’s management and who is free of any business or other relationship that could materially interfere with
or reasonably be perceived to interfere with the independent exercise of their judgement. The Board reviews the
independence of each Director in light of interests disclosed to the Board from time to time.
The Board considers that each of its’ Non-Executive Directors (listed below) are Independent Directors for the
purpose of the ASX Recommendations as each is free from any interest, position, association or relationship that
could materially interfere with, or reasonably be perceived to materially interfere with, the independent exercise of
their judgement.
The Board does not consider its’ Executive Directors to be independent given their positions in the Company.
The following were Directors during the 2015-16 financial year:
Director
Mr Denis Shelley
Mr Ian Campbell
Mr Craig Bottomley
Mr John Humble
Mr Aaron Finlay

Capacity

Position

Held office from

Held office to

Non- Executive
Chairman
Non-Executive
Director
Non-Executive
Director
Chief Executive
Officer
Executive Director

Independent

22 July 2013

Current

Independent

15 May 2015

Current

Independent

26 April 2013

Current

Non-Independent

26 April 2013

Current

Non-Independent

26 April 2013

Current
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The Board has adopted a written charter to clarify the roles and responsibilities of Board members. This charter
addresses:





The Board’s composition;
The Board’s role and responsibilities;
The relationship and interaction between the Board and management; and
The manner in which the Board monitors its own performance.

The Board must have a minimum of three and a maximum of ten Directors. One third of the Directors (excluding
the CEO) must retire at the AGM each year and may seek re-election. Any new Directors appointed by the Board
must also retire and may seek re-election at the AGM following appointment.
The composition of the Board is determined in accordance with the following principles:



The Board should comprise directors from different backgrounds with an appropriate range of
qualifications and expertise; and
The Board shall meet regularly and follow meeting guidelines set down to ensure that all Directors
participate in an informed discussion of all agenda items.

The role of the Board is to identify the expectations of Shareholders and the ethical and regulatory obligations of
the Company. The Board is responsible for identifying significant business risks and implementing arrangements
to adequately manage those risks.
The Board seeks to discharge its responsibilities in a variety of ways, including by:











oversight of the Company, including its control and accountability systems;
providing input into and final approval of management’s development of corporate strategy and
performance objectives;
appointing and removing the CEO;
ratifying the appointment and removal of senior executives;
reviewing, ratifying and monitoring systems of risk management and internal control, codes of conduct,
and legal compliance;
monitoring senior management’s performance and implementation of strategy;
ensuring appropriate resources are available to senior management;
approving and monitoring the progress of major capital expenditure, capital management, and
acquisitions and divestitures;
approving and monitoring financial and other reporting; and
monitoring compliance of tax processes.

The Board has established remuneration and risk and audit committees, each of which has a separate charter
outlining its terms of reference. The Board has also adopted a risk management policy.
The Board has procedures to allow Directors, in the furtherance of their duties, to seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense.
Responsibility for the operation and administration of the Company is delegated by the Board to the CEO and the
senior management team. The Board ensures that the CEO and senior executives are appropriately qualified
and experienced to discharge their responsibilities. The performance of the CEO and senior executives is
assessed annually with reference to agreed milestones. The Board performs a strategic review at least three
times per year, considering the performance of both itself and individual Directors. This review is carried out by
the Board as a whole, with reference to Company strategy and previously agreed milestones.
Audit and Risk Committee
Under its charter the Audit and Risk Committee must have at least three members and the members must meet
the independence and experience requirements of the ASX. All members of this committee must be financially
literate and able to read and understand fundamental financial statements. At least one member must be
determined by the Board to have the relevant qualifications and experience in accordance with the ASX
Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations.
At present Ian Campbell, Craig Bottomley and Denis Shelley are members of the Audit and Risk Committee. Ian
Campbell acts as chair of the committee. The terms of their appointment are at the discretion of the Board and
vacancies may be filled as they arise.
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The chair of the Audit and Risk Committee and the chair of any subsidiary company equivalent committee must
liaise for the purpose of ensuring the efficient operation of all Group committees and the proper consideration of
all matters placed before them.
The Audit and Risk Committee was established by the Board to facilitate:






the effective operation of systems and controls which minimise financial and operational risk;
reliable financial and management reporting policies and procedures;
compliance with laws and regulations;
maintenance of an effective and efficient internal and external audit process; and
oversight of the accounting and financial reporting processes of the Company and the audits of the
Company’s financial statements.

The Audit and Risk Committee is directly responsible for the following functions:













ensuring appropriate Group accounting policies and procedures are defined, adopted and maintained;
ensuring that Group operating and management reporting procedures, and the system of internal
control, are of a sufficiently high standard to provide timely, accurate and relevant information as a
sound basis for management of the Group’s business;
reviewing the Group financial statements prior to their approval by the Board;
reviewing the scope of work including approval of strategic and annual audit plans and effectiveness
of both the external and internal audit functions across the Group;
monitoring the proper operation of and issues raised through subsidiary company Audit and Risk
Committees (if any);
ensuring that appropriate processes are in place to ensure compliance with all legal requirements
affecting the Group;
ensuring that all internal and industry codes of conduct and standards of corporate behaviour are
being complied with;
appointment of, on recommendation by the CEO, a person responsible for internal audit functions as
specified from time to time by, and in accordance with, the Risk and Audit Committee’s charter;
establishing procedures for: (1) the receipt, retention, and treatment of complaints received by the
Company regarding accounting, internal accounting controls, or auditing matters; and (2) the
confidential, anonymous submission by employees of the Company of concerns regarding questionable
accounting or auditing matters;
actioning any other business processes or functions which may be referred to it by the Board; and
ensuring its receipt from the external auditor of a formal written statement delineating all relationships
between the auditor and the Company, consistent with appropriate standards, and the Committee shall
be responsible for actively engaging in a dialogue with the auditor with respect to any disclosed
relationships or services that may impact the objectivity and independence of the auditor and for taking,
or recommending that the Board take, appropriate action to oversee the independence of the external
auditor.

Under its charter the Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for the appointment, remuneration, monitoring
and independence of external auditors. As part of this the committee will require the rotation of the audit partner
at least once every five years. The committee must approve all audit and non-audit services provided by external
auditors and must not engage an external auditor to perform any non-audit services that may impair or appear
to impair the external auditor’s judgement or independence in relation to the Company.
The Board authorises the Audit and Risk Committee, within the scope of its responsibilities, to:




seek any information it requires from employees or external parties;
obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice; and
ensure the attendance of external parties with relevant experience and expertise.

The Company must provide appropriate funding as determined by the Audit and Risk Committee for payment of:




compensation to auditors engaged by the committee;
compensation to other advisers engaged by the committee; and
ordinary administrative expenses incurred by the committee in carrying out its duties.
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Remuneration Committee
As set out in its charter the Remuneration Committee must have at least three members. At present the members
of the Remuneration Committee are Denis Shelley, Craig Bottomley and Ian Campbell. The terms of their
appointment are at the discretion of the Board and vacancies may be filled as they arise. Denis Shelley acts
as chair of the committee. All Directors may attend meetings of the Remuneration Committee and will receive a
copy of all committee papers.
The role of the Remuneration Committee is to assist the Board to ensure that appropriate and effective
remuneration packages and policies are implemented within the Company and the Group in relation to the CEO,
executive Directors and those reporting directly to the CEO. The Remuneration Committee also reviews fees paid
to Non-Executive Directors
The duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to:
•

review and recommend to the Board remuneration policies and packages for the CEO, executive
Directors and direct reports to the CEO;

recommend to the Board any changes in remuneration policy including superannuation, other benefits
and remuneration structure for executives identified above and which are likely to have a material
impact on the Group;

review and recommend to the Board proposals for employee and Non-Executive Director equity plans;

review and recommend to the Board proposals for short and long term incentive programs for
Executives identified above;

review and recommend to the Board any changes to Non-Executive Directors’ fees;

ensure there is a proper performance management process in place throughout the organisation and
that it is operating effectively; and

be informed of:
o current trends in executive remuneration and associated incentive initiatives; and
o legislative issues associated with executive remuneration programs.
The decisions of the Remuneration Committee as set out in its minutes constitute recommendations to the Board.
The Remuneration Committee has access to senior management of the Group and may also seek independent
professional advice subject to prior confirmation with the Chairman.
Details of Directors and Key Management Personnel remuneration are contained within the Remuneration
Report.
Risk management policy
Identifying and managing business risks is an important priority for the Board. The Company has adopted a risk
management policy appropriate for its business. This policy highlights the risks relevant to the Company’s
operations and the policies the Company has enacted for the supervision and management of material business
risks.
The Board is responsible for overseeing and approving the Company’s risk management strategy and policies
and must satisfy itself that a sound system of risk management and internal control is in place. The Board has
responsibility for identifying major risk areas and implementing risk management systems. The Board is
responsible for monitoring risk management and establishing procedures which seek to provide assurance that
material business risks are identified, assessed, addressed and monitored in such a fashion as to enable
achievement of the Company’s business objectives.
The Company’s risk management policy identifies the following possible risk areas:













operations;
human resources and occupational health and safety;
asset management;
environment and sustainability;
strategic management;
reputation and ethical conduct;
stakeholder communications;
compliance and legislative;
financial and business continuity;
information technology;
foreign exchange, interest rates and commodity prices; and
political and climatic.
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The Company will regularly undertake reviews of its risk management procedures to ensure that it complies
with its legal obligations, including in relation to the recommendations of the Audit and Risk Committee.
The Board requires that each major proposal submitted to the Board be accompanied by a comprehensive risk
assessment and, where required, management’s proposed risk mitigation strategies.
In order to properly identify and develop strategies and actions to manage risk, the Company has put in place
a business risk management framework based on the following key elements:







identifying possible risks to the business;
assessing the potential consequences and impact on the Company of the identified risks and the
likelihood of occurrence;
ranking the risks based on the assessment of likely impact and likelihood of occurrence;
assessing the external environment and the control environment in place to manage the risks;
developing an appropriate response to manage the risks. Based on the ranking of the risks, the
response may include strategies aimed at eliminating, mitigating, transferring or accepting the risks; and
implementing the response developed and monitoring it to ensure controls to manage the risks are
suitable, have been carried into effect and are periodically reviewed.

While the Company uses its best endeavours to identify material business risks, the uncertain nature of the
industry, and business generally, means that it may not be possible for the Board and senior management to
foresee and identify all material business risks that may affect the Company.
Diversity Policy
The Company values a strong and diverse workforce and is committed to developing measurable objectives
of diversity and inclusion in its workplace. The Company has implemented a diversity policy, with meritocracy the
guiding principle, which is overseen by the Board and which aligns the Company’s management systems with
the commitment to develop a culture that values and achieves diversity in its workforce and on the Board
Continuous Disclosure Policy
The Company will be required to comply with the continuous disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules and the
Corporations Act. Subject to the exceptions contained in the Listing Rules, the Company will be required to
disclose to the ASX any information concerning the Company which is not generally available and which a
reasonable person would expect to have a material effect on the price or value of the Shares. The Company is
committed to observing its disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and the Corporations Act.
To that end and with effect from Listing, the Company has adopted a policy that establishes procedures aimed at
ensuring that Directors and management are aware of and fulfil their obligations in relation to the timely
disclosure of material price sensitive information. The policy will be reviewed annually.
Under this policy, the executive Directors and their advisers will be responsible for managing the Company’s
compliance with its continuous disclosure obligations. The Company Secretary will be responsible for the
disclosure of material information to the ASX and ASIC and must maintain a procedural methodology for
disclosure and record keeping.
Any items of materiality that require disclosure require the approval of the CEO and a minimum of one other
Director. Continuous disclosure announcements will be made in accordance with the Company’s
Communications Strategy Policy.
Securities Trading Policy
The Company has adopted a securities trading policy which will apply to the Company and its Directors, officers,
employees and management, including those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the Company, whether directly or indirectly.
The policy is intended to explain the types of conduct in relation to dealings in Shares that are prohibited under
the Corporations Act and establish procedures in relation to Directors, management or employees dealing in
Shares.
Subject to certain exceptions, including severe financial hardship, the securities trading policy defines certain
‘closed periods’ during which trading in Shares by Directors, officers and certain senior executives is
prohibited. Those closed periods are currently defined as any of the following periods:


the period commencing one month prior to the release of the Company’s half-year results to the ASX
and ending 24 hours after such release;
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the period commencing one month prior to the release of the Company’s full-year results to the ASX and
ending 24 hours after such release; and
the period commencing two weeks prior to the Company’s annual general meeting and ending 24
hours after the annual general meeting; and
any additional periods determined by the Board from time to time.

In all instances, buying or selling of Shares is not permitted at any time by any person who possesses pricesensitive information. A copy of this securities trading policy is available on the Company’s website at
www.bwxltd.com.
Code of Conduct
The Board recognises the need to observe the highest standards of corporate practice and business conduct.
Accordingly, the Board has adopted a formal code of conduct to be followed by all employees and officers.
The key aspects of this code are to:













act with honesty, responsibility and professionalism in the best interests of the Company and in a
manner consistent with the reasonable expectations of stakeholders (including Shareholders);
maintain and enhance the Company’s reputation as an employer, business operator and corporate
citizen;
act in accordance with all applicable laws, regulations, policies and procedures;
adhere to corporate governance policies relating to continuous disclosure and communications;
ensure that books, records and accounts are kept accurately, fairly and in reasonable detail;
safeguard BWX property against theft, willful damage or misuse;
deal with intellectual property owned by the Company in a manner that preserves and protects the
Company and its rights;
avoid conflicts of interest;
conduct business fairly and competitively in accordance with trade and anti-competition legislation;
maintain a safe, healthy efficient and productive workplace, including observing equal opportunity rights;
not make corrupt, illegal or improper payments by or on behalf of the Company; and
take into account environmental considerations when conducting business operations.

The code of conduct sets out expanded policies on various matters including ethical conduct, business conduct,
compliance, privacy, security of information, integrity, and conflicts of interest
Communications Strategy Policy
The Company’s aim is to promote effective communication with Shareholders and encourage effective
participation at general meetings of the Company. To achieve this outcome, the Company will ensure that:


materials detailed in the Communications Strategy Policy are maintained and updated on the
Company’s website (www.bwxltd.com) within a reasonable timeframe;



shareholder communications are distributed to shareholders in accordance with the Corporations Act
and the ASX Listing Rules; and



it will use available channels and technologies to communicate widely and promptly to Shareholders.

The Company’s website will contain information about it, including media releases, key policies and the terms of
reference of its Board committees. The annual report which contains key financial information about the
Company, as well as important operating and corporate information, will be published on the Company’s website.
A printed copy of the annual report is only sent to Shareholders who elect to receive one.
An annual general meeting will usually be held in November each year for the Company. This is an opportunity
for Shareholders and other stakeholders to hear from and put questions to the Board, its management and the
external auditor. Notices of meeting will be distributed to all Shareholders prior to the relevant meetings and
within the timeframe set by the Company’s constitution.
External auditors
Company policy is to appoint external auditors who clearly demonstrate quality and independence. The
performance of the external auditor is reviewed annually and applications for tender of external audit services are
requested as deemed appropriate, taking into consideration assessment of performance, existing value and
tender costs. William Buck Audit (Vic) Pty Ltd was appointed as the external auditor in 2013. The Corporations
Act required William Buck Audit (Vic) Pty Ltd to rotate audit engagement partners on listed companies at least
every five years.
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provided in the notes to the financial statements. It is the policy of the external auditors to provide an annual
declaration of their independence to the Board.
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The external auditor is requested to attend the annual general meeting and be available to answer shareholder
questions about the conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of the annual report.
Publicly available information
In accordance with the ASX Corporate Governance Council, the best practice recommendations provide that
specific documents should be publicly available.
All policies referred to in this section are available on the Company’s website www.bwxltd.com.
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Note

Year ended
30 June 2016
$’000

Year ended 30
June 2015
$’000

Sales revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit

4

53,983
(20,603)
33,380

27,822
(18,887)
8,935

Other income

4

1,170

127

Corporate and administrative expenses
Marketing, selling and distribution expenses
Occupancy expenses
Research and development and quality control expenses
Operating profit

(6,529)
(5,491)
(1,642)
(695)
20,193

(4,383)
(1,105)
(1,213)
(571)
1,790

Depreciation and amortisation
Finance expenses
Acquisition and restructuring expenses
Profit / (loss) before tax

(606)
(1,150)
(435)
18,002

(417)
(384)
(3,318)
(2,329)

(5,978)

191

12,024

(2,138)

14.08
12.96

(5.78)
(4.93)

Income tax (expense) / benefit
Total comprehensive income (loss) attributable to
owners of the Company
Earnings (loss) per share (EPS)
Basic EPS (cents) *
Diluted EPS (cents) *

5
6

8
8

*Note: comparative results are adjusted for the 5:1 share consolidation

The above Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes.
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Note
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Total current assets

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

9
10
11

2,651
11,572
11,251
25,474

3,097
7,443
6,602
17,142

12
13

3,229
76,925
569
80,723

2,273
70,139
452
72,864

106,197

90,006

3,062
6,492
4,329
846
14,729

5,961
16,959
385
23,305

550
154
704

10,116
216
10,332

Total liabilities

15,433

33,637

Net assets

90,764

56,369

80,169
637
9,958
90,764

58,024
411
(2,066)
56,369

Non-current assets
Plant and equipment
Intangible assets and goodwill
Deferred tax assets
Total non-current assets
Total assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Loans and borrowings
Current tax liabilities
Employee benefits
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Employee benefits
Total non-current liabilities

Equity
Contributed equity
Reserves
Retained earnings / (losses)
Total equity

14
15
16

15
16

17
18

The above Consolidated Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes.
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Reserves
Retained
earnings /
accumulated
losses
$’000
$’000
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Contributed
equity
$’000
Balance at 1 July 2014

Total

$’000

16,599

205

72

16,876

-

-

(2,138)
(2,138)

(2,138)
(2,138)

Transactions with owners of the
Company
Contributions and distributions
Shares issued, net of costs
Vesting costs for share options and
performance rights
Total contributions and distributions

41,425

-

-

41,425

41,425

206
206

-

206
41,631

Balance at 30 June 2015

58,024

411

(2,066)

56,369

Balance at 1 July 2015

58,024

411

(2,066)

56,369

-

-

12,024
12,024

12,024
12,024

Transactions with owners of the
Company
Contributions and distributions
Shares issued, net of costs
Vesting costs of share options and
performance rights
Total contributions and distributions

22,145

-

-

22,145

22,145

226
226

-

226
22,371

Balance at 30 June 2016

80,169

637

9,958

90,764

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income

The above Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes.
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Note

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers
Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Payments for transaction costs
Income taxes paid
Interest received
Interest paid
Net cash flows from / (used in) in operating activities

Year ended
30 June 2016
$’000

Year ended
30 June 2015
$’000

51,258
(38,402)
(435)
(1,242)
49
(1,150)
10,078

30,447
(30,371)
(1,378)
(243)
1
(244)
(1,788)

(821)
(52)

(661)
4
-

(5,820)
(6,693)

(54,306)
(54,963)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital
Capital raising costs
Proceeds (repayments) of loans and borrowings
Net cash flows from / (used in) financing activities

20,000
(1,664)
(22,167)
(3,831)

43,737
(2,312)
18,723
60,148

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June

(446)
3,097
2,651

3,397
(300)
3,097

22

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of plant and equipment
Proceeds on sale of plant and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets
Cash outflow on acquisition of business, net of cash
acquired
Net cash flows (used in) investing activities

22

The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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1.

Basis of financial report preparation
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(a) Reporting entity
BWX Limited (“the Company”) is a company domiciled in Australia. This financial report was authorised for
issue by the Directors on 16 August 2016.
The financial statements include the Group consisting of BWX Limited and its controlled entities. For the
purpose of preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Company is a for-profit entity.
(b) Statement of compliance
This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards (AASBs), other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board,
Interpretations and the Corporations Act 2001. This financial report also complies with International
Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.
(c) Basis of preparation
This financial report is presented in Australian dollars which is BWX Limited’s functional currency and
presentation currency. Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the
functional currency’).
This financial report is prepared on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the
consideration given in exchange of assets.
The amounts contained in this report and in the Directors’ report have been rounded to the nearest $1,000
(where rounding is applicable) under the option available to the company under ASIC Corporations
(Rounding in Financial / Directors’ Reports) Instrument 2016/191.
(d) Use of accounting estimates and judgements
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards require
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may
ultimately differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected. The estimates and judgements that have a significant risk of causing an adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
Carrying value of inventory
The consolidated entity assesses whether inventory is recorded at the lower of cost and net realisable
value and ensures all obsolete or slow moving stock is appropriately provided for at each reporting date.
These calculations involve estimates and assumptions around specific inventories and to the best of
management’s knowledge, inventories have been correctly and fairly recorded as at 30 June 2016.
Carrying value of receivables
The consolidated entity assesses whether trade receivables are appropriately provided for at each
reporting date. These calculations involve estimates and assumptions around specific customers and to
the best of management’s knowledge, impairment of receivables have been correctly and fairly recorded
as at 30 June 2016.
Assessment of fair values of intangible assets acquired on business combinations
In June 2015 the Group made a provisional assessment the net assets and liabilities acquired under its
purchase of the Sukin business. In June 2016 the Group completed its acquisition accounting for the
business purchase by employing an external expert, SLM corporate, to examine the fair values of the
assets and liabilities acquired in the business purchase. This resulted in a reclassification of its intangible
assets – for details of this refer to Note 13. These level 3 fair valuation assessments, based upon nonquoted market and industry data and inputs, include the following:
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- For acquired brands the “relief from royalty” method, which calculates a hypothetical royalty as a
proportion of forecast revenue. The royalty rates applied are from comparable industry data and those
applied against forecast revenues of the Group discounted to present value; and
- Acquired customer relationships are valued on a multiple of the normalized annual EBITDA arising from
each individual underlying sales relationship held by the acquired business.
Both of these valuation techniques represent the highest and best use of the aforesaid assets. The
directors have assessed that the underlying tax bases for these assets will be adjusted to these fair
valuation assessments and therefore no deferred tax asset or liability is applicable to the intangible assets
acquired in the business purchase.
Research and development credits
The consolidated entity assesses whether there is reasonable assurance that research and development
credits will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with. This assessment is based on
historical experience and regulatory communications from AusIndustry.
Share based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
For the long term incentive plan the fair value of the rights is determined using the Black Scholes pricing
model. The accounting estimates and assumptions relating to equity-settled share based payments would
have no impact on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next reporting period but may
impact the share based payment expense and equity.
Impairment and recoverable amounts of assets other than goodwill
The consolidated entity assesses impairment of all assets at each reporting date by evaluating conditions
specific to the Group and to the particular asset that may lead to impairment. These include product,
technology, economic, environmental and political environments and future expectations. If an impairment
trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. There was no impairment recognised
during the year as a result of this.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates and underlying assumptions are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.
Impairment of goodwill
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the estimation of future
cash flows that are expected to arise from the cash generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value.

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all years presented in these
consolidated financial statements, and have been applied consistently by all Group entities.

(a)

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of BWX
Limited, being the parent as at 30 June 2016 and the results of all subsidiaries for the year then ended.
BWX Limited and its subsidiaries together are referred to in this financial report as the Group or the
consolidated entity. Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. Control is achieved
when the Company:




Has power over the investee;
Is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the invested; and
Has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above. When the Company has
less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when voting rights
are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The
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voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

For personal use only






The size of the Company’s voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the
other vote holders;
Potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;
Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
Any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the
current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ends
when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the
subsidiary.
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.
All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
Business combinations
Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquire and the equity instruments issues by the Group in exchange for control of the acquire.
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
fair value, except that deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised and measured in accordance with
AASB 112 ‘Income Taxes’.
Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any noncontrolling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
Non-controlling interests are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets at the acquisition date.
Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value. Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against
goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the ‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an
asset or liability is re-measured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with AASB 139, or AASB
137 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate,’ with the corresponding gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
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If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see
above), or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised as of that date.
(b)

Fair value
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset
or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:




(c)

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date;
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Foreign currency
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency at the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are revalued at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from translation at financial year end
exchange rates are recognised in the profit and loss.

(d)

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognised to
the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be
reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is
recognised.
Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances,
trade discounts and volume rebates.
Interest
Interest is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.
Research and development credits
Revenue from research and development credits are recognised where there is reasonable assurance
that the credits will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with.

(e)

Finance costs
Finance costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. Finance costs include:




(f)

interest on bank overdrafts, short term and long term borrowings;
finance lease charges; and
amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised when an obligation to pay a dividend arises, following declaration of the
dividend by the Company’s Board of Directors.
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(g)

Income tax
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The income tax expense or revenue for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.
Deferred income tax is provided in full using the liability method on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities with the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction, affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to realise those temporary differences and losses.
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and the tax base of investments in controlled entities where the parent entity is able to control the
timing of the reversal of temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not be reversed in
the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities, and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Tax consolidation legislation
BWX Limited and its wholly-owned Australian controlled entities implemented the tax consolidation
legislation during the period ended 30 June 2014.
The head entity, BWX Limited and the controlled entities in the tax consolidated group continue to account
for their own current and deferred tax amounts. The Group has applied the Group allocation approach in
determining the appropriate amount of current taxes and deferred taxes to allocate to members of the tax
consolidated group.
In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, BWX Limited also recognises the current tax
liabilities (or assets) and the deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits
assumed from controlled entities in the tax consolidated group.
Assets or liabilities arising under tax funding agreements with the tax consolidated entities are recognised
as amounts receivable from or payable to other entities in the Group.
Any difference between the amounts assumed and amounts receivable or payable under the tax funding
agreement are recognised as a contribution to (or distribution from) wholly-owned tax consolidated
entities.
(h)

Impairment of plant and equipment and intangible assets
Impairment
The carrying amounts of the consolidated entity’s plant and equipment and intangible assets, other than
goodwill, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If
any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the profit or loss unless the asset
has previously been revalued, in which case the impairment loss is recognised as a reversal to the extent
of that previous revaluation with any excess recognised through the profit or loss.
Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of assets is the greater of their fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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Reversals of impairment
Impairment losses are reversed when there is an indication that the impairment loss may no longer exist
and there has been a change in the estimate used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.
(i)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position comprise cash at bank
and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less that are readily
converted into known amounts of cash. For the purposes of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of bank overdraft
facilities.

(j)

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provisions for impairment, doubtful debts and rebates. Trade
receivables are generally due for settlement within 60 days.
Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be
uncollectible are written off by reducing the carrying amount directly. An allowance account is used when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or financial realisation, and default or delinquency in payments, are considered
indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the impairment allowance is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the original effective interest rate. Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted if the
effect of discounting is immaterial.
The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income within other expenses.
When a trade receivable, for which an impairment allowance had been recognised, becomes uncollectible
in a subsequent period, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against other expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(k)

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:




Raw materials: weighted average cost basis;
Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs;
Packaging: weighted average cost basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Stock will be assessed at six month intervals to identify items that have the potential to become obsolete.
Appropriate provision will be made to provide for this potential obsolescence.
(l)

Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset as follows:
Office equipment
Plant and equipment
Motor vehicles
Leasehold improvements
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The carrying values of all assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable in accordance with Note 1(h).
The residual value, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These
are included in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.
(m)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually,
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful
life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis. All intangible assets held at 30 June 2016 had
indefinite useful lives. The Directors consider that intangible assets have indefinite useful lives because
they expect that they will continue to generate cash inflows indefinitely.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income when the asset is derecognised.
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of the
acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any. For the purposes of impairment
testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or Groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cashgenerating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

(n)

Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of
recognition.

(o)

Other taxes
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of Goods and Services Tax (“GST”)
except:



where the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item as applicable; and
receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.
Cash flows are included in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis and the GST
component of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or
payable to, the taxation authority, are classified as operating cash flows.
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to,
the taxation authority.
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Loans and borrowings
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Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Interest bearing loans and
borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
(p)

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation, legal or constructive, as a result of a
past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

(q)

Leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases, net of any incentives received
from the lessor, are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

(r)

Employee entitlements
Provision is made for employee benefits accumulated as a result of employees rendering services up to
balance date. The benefits include wages and salaries, incentives, compensated absences and other
benefits, which are charged against profits in their respective expense categories when services are
provided or benefits vest with the employee. The provision for employee benefits is measured at the
remuneration rates expected to be paid when the liability is settled. Benefits expected to be settled after
12 months from the reporting date are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Contributions
to superannuation plans are charged to profit or loss as the contributions are paid or become payable.
Long service leave
The provision for long service leave represents the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to
be made by the consolidated entity resulting from employees’ services provided up to the reporting date.
The provision is calculated using expected future increases in wage and salary rates including related oncosts and expected settlement dates based on turnover history and is discounted using the rates
attaching to High Quality Corporate Bonds at the reporting date that most closely match the terms of
maturity of the related liabilities. The unwinding of the discount is treated as long service leave expenses.
Superannuation Plans
The consolidated entity contributes to various defined contribution superannuation plans. Employer
contributions to these plans are recognised as an expense in the profit or loss as they are made.

(s)

Share based payments
Share-based compensation benefits are provided to Directors and to employees in accordance with the
Company’s long term incentive plan.
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a
straight line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the options/performance rights reserve.
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties other than employees are measured at the
fair value of the goods or services received, except where that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in
which case they are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the date
the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the service.

(t)

Contributed equity
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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(u)

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year.
Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares and the weighted average number of shares assumed to have been issued for
no consideration in relation to dilutive potential ordinary shares.

(v)

Segments
AASB 8 Operating Segments requires a management approach under which segment information is
presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes. Management has determined
operating segments based on the structure of reports reviewed by the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer,
Finance Director, and Non-Executive Directors (who collectively form the Chief Operating Decision
Makers (CODM) of the Group).
The CODM consider the business from both a product and geographic perspective and have identified
that the Group operates only the Hair and Beauty Products segment. This segment represents the
manufacture, wholesale and distribution sale, and development of natural body, hair and skin care
products (see Note 3).
There were three customers who make up more than 10% of total Group revenue. The total revenues
recognised in respect of these three customers was $27.5 million for the year ended 30 June 2016.

(w)

Accounting standards and interpretations
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
BWX Limited has adopted all of the new, revised or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’) that are mandatory for the current
reporting period. There has been no impact on the adoption of these pronouncements.
Accounting standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are
not yet effective and have not been adopted by the Group for the annual reporting period ending 30 June
2016 are outlined in the table below:
Standard

Mandatory date for
annual reporting
periods beginning on
or after)

Reporting period
standard adopted by
the company

AASB 9 Financial Instruments and related
standards

1 January 2018

1 July 2018

AASB 2014-4 Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation

1 January 2016

1 July 2016

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and AASB 2014-5 Amendments to Australian.
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 15

1 January 2018

1 July 2018

AASB 2015-2 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards – Disclosure Initiative:
Amendments to AASB 101

1 January 2016

1 July 2016

AASB 16 - Leases

1 January 2019

1 July 2019
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Management are currently assessing the impact of these new standards on the Group, but do not expect
a material impact on the Group.
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3.

Segment information
Information on segments
AASB 8 – Operating Segments requires a management approach under which segment information is
presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision
Makers (CODM) of the Group. The CODM have been identified as consisting of our Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer, Finance Director, and Non-Executive Directors. For the year ended 30 June 2016,
management determined that based on the structure of reports provided to the CODM and used by them
for decision making and resource allocation, that the Group continues to operate only in the Hair and
Beauty Products segment.
The Hair and Beauty Products segment represents the manufacture, wholesale and distribution sale, and
development of natural body, hair and skin care products.
There were three customers who make up more than 10% of total Group revenue. The total revenues
recognised in respect of these three customers was $27.5 million for the year ended 30 June 2016.
Geographical information
The Group operates predominantly within Australia.

4. Revenue and other income
Year ended
30 June 2016
$’000
Sales revenue
Other income
Interest income
R&D grant income
Other income (i)

Year ended
30 June 2015
$’000

53,983

27,822

49
767
354
55,153

1
126
27,949

(i)

Other income includes commissions income. Management considers that the following factors
indicate that the Group acts as an agent for this source of income:
a. The Group neither takes title to nor is exposed to inventory risk related to the goods, and
has no significant responsibility in respect of the goods sold;
b. The Group does not collect the revenue from the final customer; and
c. The Group cannot vary the selling prices set by the supplier unless directed.

5.

Expenses
Year ended
30 June 2016
$’000

Employee benefits expense includes:
Salaries and wages
Superannuation
Labour hire
Share-based payments
Other employee expenses

Acquisition and restructuring expense includes:
Professional consulting expenses
Relocation expenses
Termination payments and other employee expenses
Occupancy expenses
Provision for bad debts
Stamp duty costs
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Year ended
30 June 2015
$’000

5,199
217
73
226
747
6,462

3,182
161
481
206
610
4,640

121
20
294
435

554
85
333
169
292
1,885
3,318
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6.

Income tax
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Income tax recognised in profit or loss
Year ended
30 June 2016
$’000
Current tax expense in respect of the current period
Deferred tax (benefit) recognised in the current
period
Total income tax expense recognised in the
current period relating to continuing operations

Year ended
30 June 2015
$’000

5,934

-

44

(191)

5,978

(191)

The income tax expense for the period can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Profit / (loss) before tax
Income tax expense / (benefit) calculated at 30%
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes
Prior year adjustment
Total income tax expense recognised in the
current period

18,002

(2,329)

5,401
516
5,917
61

(699)
485
(214)
23

5,978

(191)

The tax rate used in the above reconciliation is the corporate tax rate of 30% payable by Australian
corporate entities on taxable profits under Australian tax law. The Group believes that its accruals for tax
liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on its assessment of many factors, including
interpretations of tax law and prior experience.

7.

Dividends
No dividends have been declared or paid in 2016 (2015: Nil).
2016
$‘000

2015
$’000

Dividend franking account
Amount of franking credits available to shareholders of BWX Limited for
subsequent financial years

1,242

-

The ability to utilise the franking credits is dependent upon the ability to declare dividends.
In accordance with the tax consolidation legislation, the Company as the head entity in the Group has also
assumed the benefit of $1,242,366 (2015: $Nil) franking credits.

8.

Earnings per share
2016
Cents

2015
Cents

Basic earnings per share

14.08

(5.78)

Diluted earnings per share

12.99

(4.93)

The calculation of basic earnings per share has been based on the following profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders and weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding. The calculation of diluted
earnings per share has been based on the above, taking adjustment for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.
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2016
$’000

For personal use only

Net profit (loss) used in calculating basic and diluted EPS

2015
$’000

12,024
2016
Number
‘000s

Weighted average number of shares used in the calculation of basic
and diluted earnings per share
Shares on issue as at 1 July
Add: effect of shares issued

(2,138)
2015
Number
‘000s

75,125
16,468
91,593

35,363
39,762
75,125

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 30 June used in the
calculation of basic earnings per share
Add: effect of potential conversion to ordinary shares under Executive
rights / options schemes

85,415

37,004

7,342

6,317

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 30 June used in the
calculation of diluted earnings per share

92,757

43,321

The average market value of the Company’s shares for the purpose of calculating the dilutive effect of
share options was based on quoted market prices for the year during which the options were outstanding.

9.

Cash and cash equivalents
2016
$’000
Cash on hand and at bank

10.

2,651
2,651

2015
$’000
3,097
3,097

Trade and other receivables
2016
$’000
Current
Trade debtors
Provision for doubtful debts
Provision for rebates
GST receivable
Other receivables
Prepayments

2015
$’000

10,904
(185)
(34)
10,685

7,084
(352)
(86)
6,646

679
208
11,572

208
531
58
7,443

Trade debtors
Nearly all trade debtors are unsecured. There are some circumstances where the Group will obtain
Directors’ guarantees from its trade debtors as part of its normal credit risk management covered by Note
29.
All trade debtors have been classified as current on the basis that the receivable will be collected over a
period of less than 12 months.
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At 30 June the ageing analysis of trade debtors is as follows:
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Year

Total

0-30 days

31-60 days

$’000

$’000

$’000

2016
2015

10,904
7,084

6,936
3,575

61-90 days
PDNI (i)
$’000

1,932
1,799

609
384

+91 days
PDNI (i)
$’000

+91 days
CI (ii)
$’000

1,427
1,326

-

(i) PDNI – Past due not impaired
(ii) CI – Considered impaired
Fair value and credit risk
Information about the Group’s exposure to credit and market risks, and impairment losses for trade and
other receivables, is included in Note 29.

11.

Inventories

Raw materials
Finished goods
Packaging

12.

2016
$’000

2015
$’000

1,396
7,815
2,040
11,251

1,486
2,797
2,319
6,602

Plant and equipment
Reconciliation of carrying amount

As at 1 July 2014
Cost
Accumulated
Depreciation
Carrying value
Year ended 30
June 2015
Opening carrying
value
Additions
Acquisitions
of
subsidiaries
Disposals
Depreciation
Closing carrying
value
As at 30 June
2015
Cost
Accumulated
Depreciation
Carrying value

Office
Equipment

Plant and
Equipment

Motor
Vehicles

Leasehold
Improvem
ents

Low Value
Pool

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

37
(2)

1,400
(100)

-

655
(38)

-

2,092
(140)

35

1,300

-

617

-

1,952

35

1,300

-

617

-

1,952

4
12

320
31

30

337
4

-

661
77

(6)
45

(242)
1,409

30

(168)
790

-

(416)
2,274

53
(8)

1,750
(341)

30
-

997
(207)

-

2,830
(557)

45

1,409

30

790

-

2,274
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Year ended 30
June 2016
Opening carrying
value
Additions
Acquisitions
of
subsidiaries
Disposals
Reclassification
Depreciation
Closing carrying
value
As at 30 June
2016
Cost
Accumulated
Depreciation
Carrying value

Office
Equipment

Plant and
Equipment

Motor
Vehicles

Leasehold
Improvem
ents

Low Value
Pool

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

45

1,409

30

790

-

2,274

303
-

990
-

117

138
-

18
-

1,449
117

(1)
(27)
(62)
258

(5)
(132)
(286)
1,976

(4)
(12)
131

(21)
(181)
726

184
(64)
138

(6)
(605)
3,229

322
(64)

2,556
(580)

143
(12)

1,106
(380)

216
(78)

4,343
(1,114)

258

1,976

131

726

138

3,229

Impairment loss
The Group has assessed the carrying value of plant and equipment for impairment as at 30 June 2016.
The Board does not believe that the carrying value of plant and equipment is impaired as at this date.

13.

Intangible assets and goodwill

As at 1 July 2014
Cost
Carrying value
Year ended 30
June 2015
Opening carrying
value
Additions
Acquisitions
of
subsidiaries
Reclassification on
independent
valuation
Closing carrying
value
As at 30 June
2015
Cost
Carrying value

Customer
Relationsh
-ips

Formulatio
ns &
Processes

Brands &
Trademarks

Goodwill

Other

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

7,491
7,491

7,093
7,093

1,643
1,643

-

-

16,227
16,227

7,491

7,093

1,643

-

-

16,227

-

5
-

-

53,835

72
-

77
53,835

(5,716)

(5)

-

5,721

-

-

1,775

7,093

1,643

59,556

72

70,139

1,775
1,775

7,093
7,093

1,643
1,643

59,556
59,556

72
72

70,139
70,139
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Year ended 30
June 2016
Opening carrying
value
Additions
Acquisitions
of
subsidiaries
Reclassification on
independent
valuation (i)
Closing carrying
value
As at 30 June
2016
Cost
Carrying value

Customer
Relationsh
-ips

Formulatio
ns &
Processes

Brands &
Trademarks

Goodwill

Other

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

1,775

7,093

1,643

59,556

72

70,139

-

44
-

-

6,734

8
-

52
6,734

3,338

52

35,973

(39,311)

(52)

-

5,113

7,189

37,616

26,979

28

76,925

5,113
5,113

7,189
7,189

37,616
37,616

26,979
26,979

28
28

76,925
76,925

(i) An independent valuation of intangibles was performed by SLM Corporate as part of finalising the
business combination accounting for the acquisition of the Sukin business which occurred in the
previous financial reporting period.
Impairment of other intangible assets
Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. At the end of
each reporting period, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that intangible assets may be
impaired. No such indication was present at balance date.
Assessment of fair values acquired on business combination and impairment testing of indefinitelived intangible assets
Fair value of intangible assets at 30 June 2015 had been provisionally determined. An independent
valuation of intangibles recognised on the acquisition of the Sukin and Lightning Distribution businesses
has subsequently been performed in the 2016 financial year.
Brands and trademarks recognised on the acquisition of the Sukin business in the 2015 financial year
have been independently valued by SLM Corporate at $35,660,000. Goodwill of $6,734,457 has been
provisionally recognised on the acquisition of the Lightning business (refer Note 21).
For impairment testing purposes, the Group identifies its cash generating units (CGUs) which is the
smallest identifiable group of assets that generate cash inflows largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets of groups of assets. All intangible assets are incorporated into the Group’s Australian
manufacturing and distribution cash-generating unit.
The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value in use. Value is use is calculated using
a discounted cash flow model covering a five-year period with an appropriate terminal growth rate at the
end of that period for the CGU. The model is based upon an estimated future five-year cash flow forecast,
incorporating a base year 1 budget year, a four year forecast period, and a terminal value calculation in
the fifth year, with the following key input assumptions:
2016
%
Growth rate over forecast period
Terminal value growth rate
Pre-tax discount rate

3.5
2.5
12.5

Management believes that any reasonable possible change in the key assumptions would not cause the
carrying amount of the CGU to exceed the recoverable amount.
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14.

Trade and other payables
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2016
$’000
Current
Trade creditors
Stamp duty payable
Other creditors and accruals

2015
$’000

2,366
5
691
3,062

3,328
1,885
748
5,961

Information about the Group’s exposure to currency and liquidity risks is included in Note 29.

15.

Loans and borrowings
2016
$’000
Current
Bank loan
Trade finance facility
Equipment finance
Deferred consideration owing to members of key
management personnel arising on purchases of
businesses
Deferred consideration on purchase
Purchase price adjustments
Other loan payable to key management personnel
Other financial liabilities

Non-current
Bank loan
Equipment finance

2015
$’000

191
5,105
196

5,087
5,001
39

1,000
6,492

23
4,000
266
270
2,273
16,959

550
550

10,000
116
10,116

Information about the Group’s exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and liquidity risk is included at
Note 29.
Terms and repayments schedule
The terms and conditions of outstanding loans are as follows:
Nominal
interest
rate

Year of
maturity

2016
Face value
$’000

Bank loan
Trade finance facility

3.00%
2.50%

Total interest
bearing liabilities

2016-17
2016-17

Carrying
amount
$’000

2015
Face value
Carrying
amount
$’000

$’000

191
5,105

191
5,105

15,087
5,001

15,087
5,001

5,296

5,296

20,088

20,088

In 2015 the Group established multiple banking facilities with a three-year term ending June 2018 and
comprising a $5 million bullet facility which was drawn down in full as part funding for the acquisition of
Sukin, a $15 million revolving acquisition facility, of which $10 million was drawn down in full as part
funding for the acquisition of Sukin and $10 million trade finance facility. The $15 million revolving
acquisition facility was closed during the 2016 financial year. All facilities except for the trade finance
facility were fully repaid in July 2016.
The facilities are secured by a mortgage over the assets of the consolidated group of companies. A
facility establishment fee of approximately 2.05% was paid on the initiation of the facilities with an
indicative interest rate of 3.25% on the bullet facility, 3% on the revolving acquisition facility and 2.5% on
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the trade finance facility. The interest rate applicable to the facility is variable and the Group does not
hedge the interest rate.
The facility is subject to interest coverage, gross leverage and working capital covenants. The facility also
imposes obligations on the Group with respect to reporting to the Commonwealth Bank. For the year
ended 30 June 2016 the Group has complied with its obligations under the facility.
The $4 million deferred consideration payable on the acquisition of the Sukin business was settled in June
2016.
Contingent consideration of $1 million has been recognised in relation to the acquisition of the Lightning
Brokers business. Per the Asset Sale Agreement, the deferred consideration is payable contingent upon
the Lightning business achieving an EBITDA greater of $2,250,000 for the financial year ended 30 June
2016. The EBITDA for the purposes of the agreement is the sum of the Vendors’ audited EBITDA for the
nine months to the date of acquisition (31 March 2016) plus the EBITDA achieved by Lightning
Distribution Pty Ltd for the three months from acquisition to 30 June 2016. The Directors have determined
that Lightning has achieved this target and accordingly the deferred consideration is to be settled by the
issue of ordinary shares issued at the ASX quoted price for an ordinary share as at 30 September 2016 to
the value of $1 million.
The loan from key management personnel and other financial liabilities were settled during the year.
As at 30 June 2016 the Group had available $14,704,159 (2015: $9,225,067) of undrawn borrowing
facilities.
Finance lease liabilities
Finance lease liabilities are payable as follows:
Future minimum lease
payments
2016
2015
$’000
$’000
Less
than
one year
Between
one and five
years

16.

Interest
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Present value of minimum
lease payments
2016
2015
$’000
$’000

239

56

(43)

(18)

239

56

601

136

(51)

(19)

601

136

840

192

(94)

(37)

840

192

Employee benefits
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

Current
Employee benefits
Total current provisions

846
846

385
385

Non-current
Employee benefits
Total non-current provisions

154
154

216
216

For details on employee benefit expenses see note 5.
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17.

Contributed equity
Issued capital
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2016
$’000
Ordinary shares, fully paid

2015
$’000

80,169

58,024

The Company does not have authorised capital or par value in respect of its issued shares.
Movements in share capital
Year ended
30 June 2016
Number
$’000
Balance at 1 July

375,623,118

5:1 share reconstruction (i)

(300,714,474)

Shares issued during period
- in consideration for services (ii)
- pursuant to information
memorandum (iii)
- pursuant to information
memorandum (iv)
- for business acquisitions (v)
- shares issued under LTI plan on 19
October 2015 (vi)
- shares issued under LTI plan on 22
December 2015 (vi)
Transaction costs relating to share
issues
Balance at 30 June

Year ended
30 June 2015
Number
$’000

58,024

176,816,392

16,599

-

-

-

270,000

59

-

-

13,333,333

20,000

-

-

930,752

3,750

198,806,726
-

43,737
-

2,050,000

-

-

-

100,000

-

-

-

91,592,729

(1,664)
80,169

375,623,118

(2,312)
58,024

(i)

A share reconstruction occurred on 17 September 2015, which consolidated every 5 ordinary
shares into 1 ordinary share.

(ii)

Pre consolidation 270,000 shares were granted on 26 August 2015 at a fair value of 22 cents per
share in consideration for consulting services received;

(iii)

13,333,333 shares were floated on the Australian Stock Exchange at a value of $1.50 per share on
11 November 2015;

(iv)

The effective grant date of the 198,806,726 shares issued pursuant to an information
memorandum in connection with business acquisitions was 19 June 2015 at a value of 22 cents
per share on a pre consolidation basis;

(v)

930,752 shares were issued at a fair value of $4.03 per share as at the grant date on 31 March
2016 in connection with the acquisition of the Lightning Brokers business. Refer to Note 21;

(vi)

Shares were issued to directors and senior management on 19 October 2015 and 22 December
2015 as part of the Company’s 2015 LTI Employee Loan Plan. Refer to Note 24 for further details;
and

Ordinary shares
Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at shareholders’ meetings in a poll or one vote per shareholder on a show of hands.
In the event of winding up of the Company, ordinary shareholders rank after all other shareholders and
creditors and are fully entitled to any proceeds of liquidation. Shares do not have a par value.
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commencing 11 November 2015 (the first date BWX Limited shares were quoted on the ASX).
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930,752 shares issued as consideration for the acquisition of the Lightning Brokers business are subject
to a voluntary escrow until 30 June 2017.
Dividends
Refer to Note 7 for details of dividends declared and paid during the year.

18.

Reserves
Options
Reserve

Performance
Rights Reserve

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

205
243

-

205
243

(37)
411

-

(37)
411

44

-

44

455

182
182

182
637

Balance at 1 July 2014
Option vesting costs for the period charged to
profit or loss
Reversal of options forfeited
Balance at 30 June 2015
Net option vesting costs for the period
charged to profit or loss
Employee Loan Plan expense
Balance at 30 June 2016
Nature and purpose of reserves

Options reserve
The options reserve records the fair value of options issued but not exercised.
3,940,000 of the total 5,940,000 options on issue at year-end were held by key management personnel.
Performance rights reserve
The share premium reserve records the performance rights expensed under the Company’s LTI
Employee Loan Plan.
Of the total 2,150,000 performance rights issued during the year, 1,050,000 are held by key management
personnel.

19.

Key management personnel disclosures
Individual Directors’ and Executives’ compensation disclosures
The aggregate compensation made to Key Management Personnel of the Group is set out below:

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Share-based payments

Year ended
30 June 2016
$’000
787
72
109
968

Year ended
30 June 2015
$’000
841
72
206
1,119

Loans to and from key management personnel
There were no loans to key management personnel of the Group, including their personally related
parties, as at 30 June 2016 (30 June 2015: nil).
Other transactions with key management personnel
No transactions between Directors and their Director-related entities were made with the Group during the
year ended 30 June 2016.
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20.

Details of subsidiaries
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Name

Principal activity

Parent
BWX Limited

21.

Interest held by the
Group
2016
2015
%
%

Australia

Controlled entities
Beautiworx Pty Ltd
Manufacturing
LHS No. 2 Pty Ltd
Dormant
Uspa Corporation Pty Ltd
Brand operating business
Edward Beale Hair Care Pty Ltd
Brand operating business
BWX Brands Pty Ltd
Holding company
Regulatory Advisory Services Pty Ltd
Advisory business
Regulatory Advisory Services Ltd
Advisory business
Sukin Australia Pty Ltd
Renew Skin Care Australia Pty Ltd
Derma Sukin Australia Pty Ltd
Lightning Distribution Pty Ltd

Country of
incorporation

Brand operating business
Brand operating business
Brand operating business
Distribution business

Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
United
Kingdom
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia

100
100
100
100
100
100
100

100
100
100
100
100
100
100

100
100
100
100

100
100
100
-

Acquisition of subsidiary
On 31 March 2016, the Group acquired the assets and liabilities of Lightning Brokers Pty Ltd, Vic-Pharm
Pty Ltd and Niche Brands Australia Pty Ltd. These were purchased by a newly incorporated 100% owned
entity, Lightning Distribution Pty Ltd (Lightning). This purchase constituted the purchase of a business
under AASB 3.
The Lightning acquisition undertaken during the year is representative of the Company’s stated objectives,
whereby the Company is developing a solid manufacturing base through which to support, build and
develop both currently owned and acquired brands and continue the transition to a company that
predominantly develops, produces and markets its own proprietary brands leveraging its established
distribution channels and existing portfolio of brands.
The total revenue and loss of the Lightning business since the acquisition date, and of the combined entity
as if the acquisition occurred at the start of the reporting period, is as follows:
Lightning (from date of
acquisition)

Revenue
Profit (loss) after tax

$’000

Group (as if acquisition
occurred at the start of the
period)
$’000

6,071
(393)

71,924
12,929

Consideration transferred
The following tables summarises the acquisition date fair value of each major class of consideration
transferred:

Cash payment (i)
Equity settled payment (ii)
Equity settled payment – deferred consideration (iii)
Working capital adjustment settled in cash
Total consideration transferred
(i)

5,275
3,750
1,000
2,553
12,578

The Group and the Vendor were parties to a trading relationship under normal trading terms. The
cash consideration paid to the Vendor at acquisition was offset by the total value of the Vendor’s

BWX LIMITED ABN 13 163 488 631

51

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

For personal use only

trade receivable balance owing to the Group of $2,008,264 as of this date. Accordingly, the net
cash physically paid to the Vendor amounted to $3,266,979;
(ii)

The fair value of the 930,752 ordinary shares issued was based on an agreed issue price of
$4.03 per share; and

(iii)

Contingent consideration of $1 million has been recognised in relation to the acquisition of the
Lightning Brokers business. Per the Asset Sale Agreement, the deferred consideration is payable
contingent upon the Lightning business achieving an EBITDA greater of $2,250,000 for the
financial year ended 30 June 2016. The EBITDA for the purposes of the agreement is the sum of
the Vendors’ audited EBITDA for the nine months to the date of acquisition (31 March 2016) plus
the EBITDA achieved by Lightning Distribution Pty Ltd for the three months from acquisition to 30
June 2016. The Directors have determined that Lightning has achieved this target and
accordingly the deferred consideration is to be settled by the issue of ordinary shares issued at
the ASX quoted price for an ordinary share as at 30 September 2016 to the value of $1 million.

Acquisition related costs
The Group incurred acquisition related costs of $435,134 (2015: $3,318,487) on external legal fees and
due diligence costs. These costs are recognised as ‘corporate and administrative costs’ in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
The following table summarised the recognised amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the
date of acquisition.
$’000
Trade debtors
Inventories
Plant and equipment
Provisions
Hire purchase liabilities
Total identifiable net assets acquired

2,601
3,461
117
(243)
(92)
5,844

Measurement of fair values
The valuation techniques used for measuring the fair value of material assets acquired were as follows:
Assets acquired

Valuation technique

Trade debtors

Trade debtors comprise gross contractual
amounts due at date of acquisition.

Inventories

Cost technique: the valuation model considers
quoted market prices for similar items when
they are available. For the purpose of the
acquisition this was held to be the current
selling price of inventories Lightning acquires
from the Group.

Plant and equipment

Market comparison and cost technique: the
valuation model considers quoted market
prices for similar items when they are available,
and depreciated replacement cost when
appropriate. Depreciated replacement cost
reflects adjustments for physical deterioration
as well as functional and economic
obsolescence.
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Goodwill
Goodwill arising from the acquisition has been recognised as follows:
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$’000
Consideration transferred
Less fair value of identifiable net assets
Goodwill

12,578
(5,844)
6,734

The goodwill is attributable mainly to the skills and talent of Lightning’s sales force, and the synergies
expected to be achieved from integrating the company’s distribution business into the Group’s vertically
integrated operations. None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

22.

Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities
Year ended
30 June 2016
$’000
Net profit / (loss) after tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Share-based payments
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment
Interest capitalised
Borrowing costs capitalised

Changes in assets and liabilities
(Increase) in:
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Increase / (decrease) in:
Trade and other payables
Provisions
Net income tax assets and liabilities
Net cash from operating activities

23.

Year ended
30 June 2015
$’000

12,024

(2,138)

606
285
-

448
206
(4)

891

(36)
(70)
544

(3,536)
(1,188)

(1,366)
(2,582)

(2,270)
(55)
4,212
(2,837)

4,110
77
(433)
(194)

10,078

(1,788)

Auditor’s remuneration
Year ended
30 June 2016
$
William Buck
Audit and review services
- Audit of the annual financial report
- Review of the interim financial report
- Due diligence assurance
Non-assurance services
- Taxation compliance
- Other due diligence
Total
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Year ended
30 June 2015
$

69,000
23,000
17,000
109,000

54,500
11,000
39,000
104,500

18,450
124,084
142,534
251,534

5,500
24,710
34,210
134,710
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24.

Share-based payments
At 30 June 2016, the Group had the following share based payment arrangements.
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Employee Loan Plan
Performance rights were issued to directors and senior management on 19 October 2015 and 22
December 2015 under the Company’s Employee Loan Plan (“ELP”). The issue of the rights was financed
by the Group through recourse loan agreements which have no interest bearing terms. The shares
attached to the rights have all the rights and entitlements attached to ordinary shares, with the following
exceptions:
From their grant date the shares cannot be disposed or assigned until they have vested in
accordance with performance milestones as disclosed in public announcements;
In respect of vested shares, repayment of the loan must be made within five years from when
the shares were issued. The borrower must repay the lesser of the outstanding value of the
loan or the market value of the shares acquired within the loan facility. If the borrower leaves
employment with the Group, they must repay within 12 months from their termination date the
lesser of the outstanding balance on the loan amount or the market value of the shares
acquired with the loan facility;
In respect of unvested shares, repayment of the loan must be made within five years from
when the shares are issued. The borrower must repay the market value of the shares unless
the loan had previously been repaid in full. If the borrower leaves employment with the Group
and holders unvested shares the borrower must repay the market value of the shares unless
the loan has been previously repaid in full; and
With regards to the enforcement of loan repayments the Board holds discretion to modify the
repayment terms.

o
o

o

o

In assessing the accounting treatment of this transaction, the Directors considered AASB 2 Share
Based Payments, and determined that the arrangement constituted in economic substance the granting
of performance options to employees and key management personnel, where, subject to the criteria set
out above, the recipients have the entitlement to acquire the full economic benefit of the shares (being
the right to unfettered dividend and capital return entitlements for those shares issued and granted at
that date) by acquiring those shares at a price of $1.50 per share on 19 October 2015 and $3.49 per
share on 22 December 2015. A Black-Scholes option pricing model factored in weighted average
probabilities for the exercise of those shares was employed in determining the fair value of the
arrangement that will vest to the reserve over the course of the completion of the performance
milestones. For the year ending 30 June 2016 this was $181,698.
The key terms and conditions related to the grants under these programs are as follows:
Tranche

Grant date /
employees
entitled

Number of
shares issued

Expected
vesting date at
issue

Contractual
life of rights

1

19 Oct 2015

512,500

19 Oct 2016

4 years

2
3

19 Oct 2015

410,000

19 Oct 2017

4 years

19 Oct 2015

205,000

19 Oct 2018

4 years

4

19 Oct 2015

615,000

31 Aug 2017

4 years

5

19 Oct 2015

307,500

31 Aug 2018

4 years

1

22 Dec 2015

25,000

22 Dec 2016

4 years

2

22 Dec 2015

20,000

22 Dec 2017

4 years

3

22 Dec 2015

10,000

22 Dec 2018

4 years

4

22 Dec 2015

30,000

31 Aug 2018

4 years

5

22 Dec 2015

15,000

31 Aug 2019

4 years

Total ELP shares

2,150,000

Refer to the Remuneration Report on pages 12 to 19 for details of vesting conditions.
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The fair value of each performance right is estimated on the date of the grant using a Black-Scholes
option formula, with the following weighted average assumptions used for grants made during the year.
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The following table lists the inputs to the model used for the ELP for all issues of performance rights
which have not vested at 30 June 2016:

Date of grant - Oct 2016
Share price at valuation date
(i)
Expected volatility
Risk free interest rate
Expected life of performance
right
Fair value of performance
right
Date of grant – Dec 2015
Share price at valuation date
(i)
Expected volatility
Risk free interest rate
Expected life of performance
right
Fair value of performance
right
(i)

Tranche 1

Tranche 2

Tranche 3

Tranche 4

Tranche 5

$1.50

$1.50

$1.50

$1.50

$1.50

60.00%
2.07%
2.30 years

60.00%
2.07%
1.90 years

60.00%
2.07%
1.90 years

60.00%
2.07%
1.88 years

60.00
2.07%
1.86 years

$0.33

$0.30

$0.30

$0.30

$0.30

$3.49

$3.49

$3.49

$3.49

$3.49

60.00%
2.07%
2.30 years

60.00%
2.07%
1.90 years

60.00%
2.07%
1.90 years

60.00%
2.07%
2.04 years

60.00%
2.07%
2.11 years

$0.38

$0.23

$0.18

$0.14

$0.12

Spot rate at valuation date

Reconciliation of outstanding share options
The number and weighted average exercise prices of the Company’s share options are as follows:
Number of options

Outstanding at 1 July 2015
5:1 share consolidation

29,200,000

$0.40

(23,760,000)

$0.40

-

-

Exercised during the year
Granted during the year (i)

(i)

25.

Weighted average
exercise price

500,000

$2.00

Outstanding at 30 June 2016

5,940,000

$2.00

Exercisable at 30 June 2016

5,940,000

$2.00

500,000 options (pre share consolidation) were granted to Mr Ian Campbell on 15 July 2015 with at a
fair value of $0.039 per option (total $19,779). The exercise price is $2.00 and the expiry date is 30
September 2018. The options are subject to the same terms and conditions as disclosed in Options
section above.

Commitments and contingent assets and liabilities
Operating leases
The Group leases a number of production, warehousing and distribution facilities under operating leases.
The leases typically run for a period of 10 years, with an option to extend for between 5 and 10 years
further after that date. For certain operating leases, the Group is restricted from entering into any sub
lease arrangements.
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Future minimum lease payments
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At 30 June 2016 the future minimum lease payments were as follows:
2016
$’000
Within one year
More than one but not more than five years
More than five years

2015
$’000
1,165
3,975
3,955
9,095

945
3,638
4,266
8,849

The Group recognised a total of $994,639 in profit or loss as lease rental expense in 2016 (2015:
$623,449).
The Group has entered into multiple bank guarantees in relation to its operating leases with a value of
$189,528.
Commitments and contingent liabilities
Management has assessed that the Group has no further commitments or contingent liabilities as at 30
June 2016 (2015: $Nil).

26.

Deed of cross guarantee
Pursuant to ASIC Class Order 98/1418 (as amended) dated 13 August 1998, the wholly owned
subsidiaries listed below are relieved from the Corporations Act 2001 requirements for preparation, audit
and lodgement of financial reports, and Directors’ reports.
It is a condition of the Class Order that the Company and each of the subsidiaries enter into a Deed of
Cross Guarantee. The effect of the Deed is that the Company guarantees to each creditor payment in full
of any debt in the event of winding up of any of the subsidiaries under certain provisions of the
Corporations Act 2001. If a winding up occurs under other provisions of the Act, the Company will only be
liable in the event that after six months any creditor has not been paid in full. The subsidiaries have also
been given similar guarantees in the event that the Company is wound up.
All subsidiaries of BWX Limited are parties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee as follows:












27.

Beautiworx Pty Ltd
LHS No. 2 Pty Ltd
USpa Corporation Pty Ltd
Edward Beale Hair Care Pty Ltd
BWX Brands Pty Ltd
Regulatory Advisory Services Pty Ltd
Regulatory Advisory Services Ltd
Sukin Australia Pty Ltd
Derma Sukin Australia Pty Ltd
Renew Skin Care Australia Pty Ltd
Lightning Distribution Pty Ltd

Subsequent events
The Company entered into an agreement with Boots in July 2016 to initially range 27 of Sukin’s bestselling SKU’s in approximately 80 of Boots’ highest turnover stores. In addition, 14 of these SKU’s will be
on shelf in a further 140 selected high street locations. Sukin products will also be available on order from
any of Boots 2,500 retail outlets as well as through their online stores. The products selected by Boots are
comprised of several core range products, along with the popular Super Greens and recently released Oil
Balancing ranges.
There has not been any other matter of circumstance occurring subsequent to the end of the financial
year that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results
of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Company in future financial years, other than that
disclosed in the Directors’ Report.
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28.

Parent entity disclosures
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As at, and throughout, the financial year ended 30 June 2016 the parent entity of the Group was BWX
Limited.
Parent
2016
$’000

2015
$’000

383
80,987
81,370

1,224
70,059
71,283

4,974
19
4,993

5,177
10,005
15,182

Net assets

76,377

56,102

Total equity of the parent entity comprising of:
Issued capital
Reserves
Accumulated losses
Total equity

80,169
636
(4,428)
76,377

58,024
411
(2,333)
56,102

Assets
Current assets
Non-current assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Year ended
30 June 2016
$’000

Year ended
30 June 2015
$’000

Profit and loss
Loss

(2,030)

(1,692)

Total comprehensive income

(2,030)

(1,692)

Parent entity contingent liabilities
There were no contingent liabilities, guarantees or capital commitments of the parent entity not otherwise
disclosed in these financial statements.
Parent entity capital commitments for acquisition of property plant and equipment
There were no capital commitments for acquisitions of property plant and equipment of the parent entity
not otherwise disclose in these financial statements.
Parent entity guarantees in respect of the debts of its subsidiaries
The parent entity has entered into a Deed of Cross Guarantee with the effect that the Company
guarantees debts in respect of certain subsidiaries.
Further details of the Deed of Cross Guarantee and the subsidiaries subject to the Deed are disclosed in
Note 26.

29.

Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management
The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise of loans and borrowings and trade and other payables.
The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group’s operations. The Group’s principal
financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that derive
directly from its operations.
The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s senior management
advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Group,
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providing assurance to the Board of Directors that the Group’s financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in
accordance with the Group’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.
(a)

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk,
such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include
accounts payable, accounts receivables, loans and borrowings and cash deposits. The risks to which the
Group has a material sensitivity are described below.
(i)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. As at 30 June 2016 all of the Group’s financial liabilities had
variable interest rates, and therefore as at this date there was no fair value sensitivity to changes in
interest rates. However, the Group has a cash flow exposure to changes in market interest rates. The
Group manages its cash flow risk of changes to interest rates through cash flow forecasting analyses,
which incorporate the potential for interest rate movements. As at 30 June 2016 there was no material
sensitivity to the value of financial instruments arising from a change in interest rates.

(ii) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated
in foreign currencies, hence exposures to foreign exchange rate fluctuations arise. Settlement of trade
payables and receivables are performed at spot rates, and management monitors this risk through cash
flow forecasting and will continue to monitor the management of this risk as the scale of the Group’s
operations grows. As at 30 June 2016 there was no material sensitivity to a change in foreign exchange
rates to the Company’s financial instruments.
(b)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group has a material exposure to credit risk from its
operating activities being the value of its trade receivables.
Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures and control relating
to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive
credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment.
Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. At 30 June 2016, the Group had 24
customers (2015: 13 customers) that owed the Group more than $100,000 each and accounted for
approximately 78.51% (2015: 83.4%) of all the receivables outstanding.
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In
addition, minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment
collectively. The calculation is based on actual incurred historical data. The maximum exposure to credit
risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivables disclosed in Note 10. The
Group may obtain Directors’ guarantees where a customer is considered to be of risk to the business. The
Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are
located in several jurisdictions and industries. At 30 June 2016 the Group had receivables totaling
$2,506,232 in arrears of credit terms (2015: $2,667,263), representing 22.98% of all receivables
outstanding (2015: 31.3%).

(c)

Liquidity and capital risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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Liquidity risk arises from the financial liabilities of the Group and the Group’s subsequent ability to meet
their obligations to repay their financial liabilities as and when they fall due.
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of equity and debt funding and cash and short-term deposits sufficient to meet the Group’s current cash
requirements. Details of the contractual maturities of financial assets and liabilities were as follows:
Less than 6
months
$’000
As at 30 June 2016
Liquid financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Loans and borrowings

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Loans and borrowings

1 to 5 years

Total

$’000

$’000

2,651
11,153
13,804

-

-

2,651
11,153
13,804

3,062
5,976
9,038
(4,766)

100
100
(100)

550
550
(550)

6,626
6,626
(7,178)

Less than 6
months
$’000
As at 30 June 2015
Liquid financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

6 to 12
months
$’000

6 to 12
months
$’000

1 to 5 years

Total

$’000

$’000

3,097
7,443
10,540

-

-

3,097
7,443
10,540

5,961
7,132
13,093
(2,553)

9,826
9,826
(9,826)

10,116
10,116
(10,116)

5,961
27,075
33,036
(22,496)

Due to the nature of the Group’s operating profile, the Directors and management do not consider that the
fair values of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities are materially different from their carrying amounts
at 30 June 2016.
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1.

In the opinion of the directors of BWX Limited (the Company):
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(a)

(b)

the consolidated financial statements and notes that are set out on pages 28 to 59 and the
Remuneration Report in pages 12 to 19 of the Directors Report are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including:
(i)

giving a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 30 June 2016 and of its
performance for the financial year ended on that date; and

(ii)

complying with Australian Accounting Standards and Corporations Regulations 2001; and

there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and
when they become due and payable.

2.

There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company and the Group entities identified in Note 26
will be able to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are or may become subject to by virtue of
the Deed of Cross Guarantee between the Company and those Group entities pursuant to ASIC Class
Order 98/1418.

3.

The directors have been given the declarations required by Section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 by
the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer for the financial year ended 30 June 2016.

4.

The directors draw attention to Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements which includes a statement
of compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors:

Mr John Humble
Chief Executive Officer
Melbourne, 16 August 2016
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Equity security holders
As at 30 June 2016 the Company has 91,592,729 ordinary shares on issue. Further details of the Company’s
equity securities are as follows:
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Largest holders
The following table shows the 20 largest registered shareholders as at 30 June 2016 (as named on the register of
shareholders):
Ordinary Shares
Number Held
% of Issued Shares

Name
National Nominees Limited
Leisure & Hospitality Services Pty Ltd
J P Morgan Nominees Australia Limited
RBC Investor Services Australia Nominees Pty Ltd
UBS Nominees Pty Ltd
HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited
Citicorp Nominees Pty Ltd
BNP Paribas Noms Pty Ltd
HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited
HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited – A/C 2
UBS Nominees Pty Ltd
Magnum Capital Pty Ltd
Brispot Nominees Pty Ltd
Fairlight Capital Pty Ltd
Mr Mark William East
Lightning Brokers Pty Ltd
Bond Street Custodians Pty Ltd
Sol Capital Pty Ltd
CS Fourth Nominees Pty Ltd
Australian Natural Cosmetics Pty Ltd
Total Top 20 Holders
Total Other Holders
Grand Total

11,481,001
9,742,945
9,650,400
8,835,536
7,724,078
7,576,279
3,936,218
3,058,294
1,764,806
1,536,955
1,150,000
1,103,695
950,940
751,848
750,000
707,372
643,646
631,848
605,541
500,000
73,101,402
18,491,327
91,592,729

12.53
10.64
10.54
9.65
8.43
8.27
4.30
3.34
1.93
1.68
1.26
1.21
1.04
0.82
0.82
0.77
0.70
0.69
0.66
0.55
79.81
20.19
100.00

Substantial shareholders
The following table shows the substantial holders as notified to the Company in substantial holding notices as at
30 June 2016:
Name

Bennelong Funds Management Group Pty Ltd
Leisure & Hospitality Services Pty Ltd as
trustee for the Humble Family Trust and John
Humble
Regal Funds Management Pty Limited
Paradice Investment Management Pty Ltd
National Australia Bank Limited and its
associated entities
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Noted
Date of
Change

Number of Equity Securities

Voting Power

11/11/2015
11/11/2015

12,321,140
10,042,945

13.605%
11.090%

11/11/2015
11/11/2015
14/04/2016

9,562,754
8,730,852
4,583,758

10.550%
9.641%
5.004%
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Distribution of equity security holders
Holdings distribution
Number of equity security holders
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Range

Ordinary shares

Options

100,001 and over
10,001 to 100,000
5,001 to 10,000
1,001 to 5000
1 to 1,100

46
275
327
1,153
1,011

5
-

Total
Unmarketable Parcels

2,812
-

5
-

Voting Rights
The voting rights attaching to each class of equity securities are set out as below:
Ordinary shares
Holders of ordinary shares have the right to vote at every general meeting of the Company and at separate
meetings of holders of Ordinary Shares. At a general or separate meeting, every holder of ordinary shares
present in person or by proxy has, on poll, one vote for each ordinary share held.
Performance rights
Performance rights have been issued to employees as part of various performance plans in the 2016 financial
year:
Number of employees participating: 2016 – 10 employees
Maximum number of ordinary shares which may be issued if the performance conditions are achieved:
2,150,000
Participants do not have voting rights
Securities purchased on-market
There were no securities purchased on-market during the financial year ended 30 June 2016.
Unquoted equity securities
Ordinary shares
BWX Limited has no unquoted equity securities on issue at 30 June 2016.
Options
BWX Limited has 5,940,000 unquoted options on issue at 30 June 2016.
Securities exchange
The Company is listed on the Australian Securities Exchange. The Home exchange is Melbourne.
Other information
BWX Limited, incorporated and domiciled in Australia, is a publicly listed company limited by shares.
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2014

2015

2016

Operating results ($’000)
Sales revenue
EBITDA
EBIT
Profit (loss) before tax
Profit (loss) after tax

10,608
1,030
220
167
72

27,822
1,790
(1,946)
(2,320)
(2,138)

53,983
20,193
19,152
18,002
12,024

Financial position ($’000)
Working capital
Fixed assets (including intangibles)
Contributed equity
Net debt (net cash)
Net assets

6,488
18,178
16,599
(4,038)
16,875

17,142
72,413
58,024
(19,978)
56,369

25,474
80,154
80,169
(2,975)
90,764

Shareholder related
Dividend
Ordinary per share
Total dividends
Earnings per share (cents)
Dividend payout ratio
Net tangible asset backing per share
Market capitalization (year-end) ($’000)

0.09
$0.002
-

(5.78)
($0.038)
-

14.08
$0.145
431,402

2.08
47.47
4.13

(6.99)
59.67
(5.08)

35.48
17.00
16.65

Ratios and returns
EBIT margin
Gearing
Interest cover

BWX Limited was incorporated in the 2013-14 financial year. A three-year rather than five-year summary is
provided.
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